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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. GU Genyong
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Mr. YU Wayne W.
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Mr. WEI Junyong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N j = 7]‘4. :

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank
Agriculture Bank of China

AUDITOR
KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance

with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong Law

DLA Piper Hong Kong
25th Floor

Three Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Head Office

Tower Il, No.32 Lingyin Road
Xihu District, Hangzhou 310007
Zhejiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Room 706, 7/F., Albion Plaza
2-6 Granville Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Hxi #Jf

SHARE INFORMATION

: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code : 90

Board Lot : 2000 shares

Financial Year End : 31 December

Place of listing

At 31 December 2019
Number of shares in issue: 458,600,000 ordinary shares

Market capitalisation : HK$302.68 million
Closing price : HK$0.66 per share

SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

For attending and voting at the Annual General
Meeting
At 4:30 pm

on 29 May 2020

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration
with Share Registrar

Closure of Register of Members 1 to 4 June 2020

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 4 June 2020
Annual General Meeting 4 June 2020
Ex-dividend date for final dividend 8 June 2020

For entitling 2019 final dividend

Latest time to lodge transfer At 4:30 pm on
documents for registration 9 June 2020
with Share Registrar

Closure of Register of Members 10 June 2020

Record date 10 June 2020

Payment Date of Final Dividend 24 June 2020

2020 Interim Results Announcement  August 2020 (tentative)
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

40/F., China Online Centre
333 Lockhart Road

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone . (852) 2136 6185
Facsimile : (852) 3170 6606
E-mail : pxce@iprogilvy.com

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWw. pxcleanenergy.com

REEBRE

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.
EBETF

5% 52 183335k

f B A8 485 R 04088

e . (852) 2136 6185
HE : (852) 3170 6606
ESEEl . pxce@iprogilvy.com
NGIEE

WWw. pxcleanenergy.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LR

Revenue (RMB'000)
kg (AE®TrT)

B Electricity &/
B Heat #7

389,631

348,364
279,173 I 281,625 292,209

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Net Asset Value per share (RMB)
& Gearing Ratio

BREERE (AEW) RARRALLE

60.83%  59.80%
53.68% .
0\.\48-8”’ 43.35%
.\.

1.14
1.02 1.96 ? 9 g

CY S —

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Profit for the year (RMB'000)
& Net Profit Margin

FHRH (ARWTT) ReiFE

18.77%
14.85% 16.18%

.
9 [ ]
1'1.'13/0/ Ygﬂ%

[
L4 54,851

43,379 45,580
' 41,451
i i 8 i

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Dividend (HK$)

Be (#x) B Final &

0.04*

0.035
0.038 0.08 0.038 i

a | e (RS- P s

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

* Proposed final dividend 1
BAFIYER , s
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Revenue Hﬁlﬁ{l
Profit from operations 42 s Al
Profit attributable to equity AR AR R
shareholders of the Company JE 1 7
Basic earnings per share BREXRRBF
Dividend per share hikE
— Interim — i
- Proposed final — ¥R K 5
Total assets BEE
Total equity attributable to equity N A A X

shareholders of the Company JE1h fa 25
Net asset value per share! FREEFE
Net debt® & 75 % 582
Total capital® B mEEs
Gearing ratio* BEEARL &
Notes:
1 Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Number of ordinary shares in issue
2. Total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings, shareholder’s

loan and lease liabilities) — Cash and cash equivalents

3 Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company +

Net debt

4. Net debt
Total Capital

- FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
,\ﬁﬁﬁﬁx :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-_A=+—-HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
ARBTR ARET T 2%
292,209 281,625 3.8%
101,612 93,733 8.4%
54,854 45,580 20.3%
RMBO0.12 RMB0.099 21.2%
AR0.127T N Koy
Nil Nil & 0%
HK$0.04 HK$0.035 14.3%
0.04#& T 0.035% 7T
At 31 December
®+=A=+-8
2019 2018
—EB-AE —NE
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
ARETR ARETT 28
1,170,621 1,234,156 -5.1%
576,132 542,487 6.2%
RMB1.26 RMB1.18 6.8%
AR%1.267T AR#1.187T
440,942 518,572 -15.0%
1,017,074 1,061,059 -4.1%
43.35% 48.87% -5.5%
. 75 7N ) A 2 R SR A 0 4 2
BBITEEREE
2. REAE (BREIEER BREFKAEARE) -7
%&iﬁﬁ%f“%’
3. s T%E’gﬁﬁfﬁﬂ@ﬁsmﬂiﬁ%%%ﬁ
4, % fgﬁ
BREE
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CHAIRI\/IAN S STATEM ENT
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Dear Shareholders,

2019 marked the 10th anniversary of the Group’s
listing on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and set the milestone for the Company’s
renaming as “Puxing Clean Energy Limited”. The name
“Puxing Clean Energy” signifies the strong background
of the shareholders of the Group and the new direction
of its future business development, and will lead
the Group to embark on a new chapter of business
development.

In 2019, while striving to explore new businesses,
we, as always, focused on the development of
existing business. For the year ended 31 December
2019, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Group increased by 20.35% to RMB54.85 million,
with earnings per share up by 21.21% to RMBO0.12;
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company increased by 6.2% to RMB576.13 million,
with a net asset value per share up by 6.78% to
RMB1.26.

POWER GENERATION BUSINESS

The aggregate installed capacity of natural gas-fired
power plants of the Group was approximately 458MW,
including 578kW of photovoltaics power generating
units. The four power plants under the Group in
Zhejiang Province have been transformed to peaking
power plants by the Zhejiang provincial government
since 2015, which have been responsible for acting
in concert with relevant government authorities in
Zhejiang Province for power generating units based on
the maximum demand within the power grid. With the
rapid development of other renewable energy source
and the increasingly sophisticated energy storage
technology, the production volume of the Group
continued to decrease and maintained at low levels in
recent years. In 2019, the production volume by natural
gas of the Group was 84,015MWh, representing a
decrease of 5.07% as compared to last year. With the
decrease of production volume in recent years, the
capacity tariff revenue under the trial implementation
of the dual tariff policy by Zhejiang Province since
2015 has become the primary source of revenue of the
Group, representing 74.61% of the total revenue of the
Group.

B AR

TENERAKEERTEBMAR B ERL
FE+%@¢'DT%$ETE%7%F FERREAR
AR W—EEERZ - [EERE] ERF
BanEAKRENBABRRESARERKE
BERROF AR TS| BARERBERE

[ 3 —

—E-NEF AEEEZENARTELENR
B A E T EREERER -HE
—E-NFE+_AZt+—BUEFE KAEH
AR B FE(E % R R 20.35% 2 AR¥S54.858 8
ﬁiﬁ&%a’“lﬁ*ﬁm 21%&E AR¥0.1270: K

NAEZRREHAEDZIERC2%E AR

576.13E &L  EREEFEIZK6.78%E A
K1 .267T °

BREXK

AEBXARBEEHMAOBEBRSTE H1458K
&R BE578 TR INESHAE - NEE
TEBURZFEETHE T —AEENTEBA
T3 B 1 TR z%ﬁ,\ﬁa T 4 HE R
FIERFI IR R m e B TEIE BRIk T BE 3 B
iﬂ%éf?-a BE 2 H {th B B3 A BE R B TR R B R AN £
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/W’J\]IQ‘E¢TE1&7}<§Z cZE-NF -AEEX
SRR E84,015KELIF  BREFHAD5.07% °
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
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HEATING BUSINESS

Anji Power Plant under the Group is the only power
plant of the Group to generate heat. Currently, Anji
Power Plant has a maximum heating capacity of
approximately 160 tons/hour, which mainly provides
steam for manufacturers in proximity to its heating
pipelines. The heating business had become a
new source of revenue of the Group since 2017. In
2019, the demand for heating of export enterprises
decreased due to the impact of the Sino-US trade
war, which led to a decrease of 6.41% in heat sales
volume to 97,639 tons as compared to last year.
However, benefiting from the rise in heat selling price,
total revenue from sales of heat for the year increased
by 10.97% to RMB28,740,000 as compared to last
year, and gross profit margin also increased 7.05% to
10.23% from last year.

OUTLOOK

As the current capacity tariff, volume tariff and gate
station price for natural gas are determined by Zhejiang
Provincial Development and Reform Commission
instead of the market, the Group is exposed to
relatively high policy risks. Nevertheless, we still believe
that natural gas-fired power generating business
remains promising in development for the next five to
ten years. As an enterprise focusing on energy, we are
looking forward to the energy era and will transform
into an integrated energy supplier with “Energy +
Technology” as its core philosophy, dedicated to
exploring the development of diversified energy
business for fresh impetus of the Group and enhancing
its long-term growth potential and shareholders’ value.

HEEB

AEBTBEZEEMALAEER —HANE
BoBE ZHEBRNB/NREEAHBRERLD
160 T E AHATBOMARIEEE R
HAEBEEE T tFREXARNEENH
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MeEREREF R 6.41%E97,6390F - B
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AR EFIEE10.97%FE A R #28,740,000
JL EFEFFREF EFA7.06%%E10.23% ©
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEM ENT
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Looking into the coming years, while focusing on
expanding its installed capacity and heating business,
the Group will explore and develop auxiliary power
service, energy contracts management, energy
storage and other new businesses as its future
development goals. Although we expect to encounter
many difficulties and challenges in the process of
this transformation, we will press ahead and spare
no effort to maximise the benefits and returns for our
shareholders.

Finally, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, business partners, directors,

management team as well as our loyal and diligent staff
members.

WEI Junyong
Chairman

Zhejiang Province, China, 30 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
IE 2 *T %5 i

Puxing Clean Energy Limited (formerly known as
“Amber Energy Limited”) (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is
mainly engaged in the development, operation and
management of natural gas-fired power plants. The
Group has four wholly-owned gas-fired power plants
in Zhejiang Province, with an aggregate installed
capacity of approximately 458MW (including 578kW
photovoltaic power generating units) with a maximum
heating capacity of approximately 160 tons/hour. To
better reflect the future strategic direction and business
focus of the Group and the relationship between the
Company and its controlling shareholder, the Company
was approved by the shareholders by way of a poll on
4 July 2019 to change the name of the Company to
“Puxing Clean Energy Limited & 2285 B R A a)" with
effect from 11 July 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

With the overall economic restructuring and the
structural adjustment in electricity procurement
demand of Zhejiang Province in 2019, the relevant
government departments in Zhejiang Province
optimised and adjusted the annual production plan of
the Group’s four power plants to meet the maximum
demand within the power grid during the year. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s overall
power generation decreased by 5.07% to 84,015MWh
as compared to 88,505MWh in the previous year.
Meanwhile, in view of the overall decrease in electricity
generation during the year, the consumption of natural
gas for electricity generation decreased by 8.82% to
19,293,888m? from 21,160,000m? in the previous year.
During the year, benefiting from the rise in heat selling
price, while the heat sales volume decreased by 6.41%
to 97,639 tons from 104,321 tons in the previous
year, the revenue from sales of heat still increased by
10.97% to RMB28,740,000 from RMB25,899,000 in
the previous year, representing an increase of 7.05
percentage points in the gross margin to 10.23% from
3.18% in the previous year. Given the decrease in
heat sales volume during the year, the consumption
of natural gas for heating decreased by 7.89% to
9,175,600m? from 9,962,000m?® in the previous year.

T E RS ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ(ﬁﬂﬁf%fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
A1) ([A2aal - EREMBAR [
EIJ)E ﬁ?b&?&”‘ﬁ%ﬁ""ﬂﬂ’] 5 IR
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Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁlﬁﬁ BEMAEX BI58KE (FF
BIESTST RH A EMA) F/ERAH
HEA4160M8 - BEERMAEE Z KKK
M ERESEEIARANAREEERARRE
2HEEFE XRATR-_E-HNEFE+ANBERSE
KEZTHBRBENARELME A [Puxing Clean
Energy Limited 228 ER AR - WHRZE
—NFtA+—BEREK-

E3 e

BEENMTIEAR T NFRNERBCELAERAE
HELEESREBERAZ  WIARERMA
PR FREREEMPBIET KB TEHAE
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MAE -BHE=—_FT—NF+_A=+—HLF
B AEENERBEEER LF/E88,505KE
S 507%184015J|:EHT°H57 & & F
NEBEEREERD BEARXAIENRLEF
F21,160,000475/\/ 18.82%% 19,293,888
UAK-FR XBRFRERER LR
EEREE FFE104,321H 7 2 6.41%E
97,639MEM B R T N FEERWMANR EF
EAR®25,899,0000#EK10.97% = A R
28,740,0007T - EF K I8 £ F/E3.18% L
7.0518 & 9 B £10.23% ° A fE F A & 285
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
’“'“IEJE“T &"*ﬁ

During the year, the Zhejiang Provincial Development
and Reform Commission announced “Notice from
the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission Regarding the Adjustment of Gate Station
Price for Natural Gas and On-grid Tariff” (Zhe Fa Gai Jia
Ge [2019] No. 25), “Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission Regarding the
Adjustment of On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power
Generating Units” (Zhe Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 210),
“Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial Development and
Reform Commission Regarding the Adjustment of
Gate Station Price for Natural Gas” (Zhe Fa Gai Jia Ge
[2019] No0.200), “Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission Regarding the
Adjustment of Gate Station Price for Natural Gas”
(Zhe Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 484) and “Notice from
the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission Regarding the Adjustment of On-grid
Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generating Units” (Zhe Fa
Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 491) on 19 January 2019, 16
April 2019, 12 April 2019, 29 November 2019 and
4 December 2019 respectively to adjust the volume
tariff of natural gas power generating units and gate
station price for natural gas (inclusive of value-added
tax (“VAT")). After several adjustments during the year,
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of each of Zhejiang
Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd* (formerly
known as “Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd.*”) (“Deneng Power Plant”),
Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd.*

*

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
IE 2 *T %5 i

(formerly known as “Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd.*”) (“Bluesky Power
Plant”) and Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as “Zhejiang Amber
Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd.*”)
(“Jingxing Power Plant”) under the Group was adjusted
from RMBO0.79/kWh at the beginning of the year to
RMBO0.686/kWh at the end of the year, representing a
decrease of approximately 13.16%; the volume tariff
(inclusive of VAT) of Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as “Amber (Anji) Gas
Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd.*”) (“Anji Power Plant”)
was adjusted from RMBO0.73/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMB0.626/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.25%; the
price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of power plants
under the Group was also lowered from RMB3.27/m?3
at the beginning of the year to RMB2.88/m?® at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
11.93%; the capacity tariff of the power plants
(inclusive of VAT) remained unchanged.

Besides, the Ministry of Finance, the State
Administration of Taxation and Customs issued the
“Notice of Policies in Relation to the Deepening of
Value-added Tax Reforms” (Announcement 2019 No.
39) during the year and announced that the VAT rates
would be adjusted since 1 April 2019. In relation to
the main business of the Group, the output VAT rate
for electricity sales and heat sales was adjusted from
16% to 13% and the input VAT rate for natural gas was
adjusted from 10% to 9%.

*

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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Equity Installed Capacity

As at 31 December 2019, the equity installed capacity
of power plants held and operated by the Group is as

1@3&%@1&""

“E-AFFTZA=tT—H - AKEEER
%@mﬁﬁﬁZ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁng-

follows:
Equity
Installed Equity installed
Power plant Category capacity interest capacity
BER BERY KHE B HoRHEE
(MW) (%) (MW)
(KR) (%) (JkE)
Bluesky Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
EXER RIARR
Deneng Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
mREER ARR
Jingxing Power Plant Natural gas 75 100 75
REERK RIARR
Photovoltaics 0.22 100 0.22
FAR
Anji Power Plant Natural gas 158 100 158
ZHER RIARR
Photovoltaics 0.36 100 0.36
FAR
Total 457.58 100 457.58
Eoh
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On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission after taking
into account the types of fuel, cost structure and
operating profit of similar power plants within the
provincial grid. According to the “Notice Regarding
the Trial Implementation of Dual Tariff for Natural
Gas Power Generating Units in Zhejiang Province”
issued by the Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province, a
dual tariff policy for natural gas power generation (the
“Dual Tariff Policy”) has been implemented in trial by
Zhejiang Province since 1 January 2015. Affected by
the relevant policy, the Group's tariff revenue is mainly
divided into two parts, namely volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue.

During the year, according to the adjustments made
by Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission under “Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission Regarding the
Adjustment of Gate Station Price for Natural Gas and
On-grid Tariff” (Zhe Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 25) and
“Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial Development and
Reform Commission Regarding the Adjustment of On-
grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generating Units” (Zhe
Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 210 and No. 491), the volume
tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant, Bluesky
Power Plant and Jingxing Power Plant under the Group
was adjusted from RMBO0.79/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMBO0.686/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 13.16%;
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Anji Power Plant
was adjusted from RMBO0.73/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMBO0.626/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.25%. The
capacity tariff (inclusive of VAT) of the power plants
under the Group remained unchanged.

LERE
ITREBTHMNIEAEERNNETZEZLRES
NEMPREEMOMEIELE ARG ERE
“%%Tﬁ'ﬁé?ﬂzﬁ BENIEWER (BREKRE
RAREBEERAANTWIHEENBEA)
TEE_Z—hAF—A—HRTRKAREESE
MEFIEEHRR([MBHEBREK]) - XB
BRRTE AEENEBREETEDKMEL
N BEBEBWNANMBEEEBWA-

FRREBENIEAEENNEZESERERNR
CHTEAEENEZERABRRKARFIAES
MEPEENBA) CHEREKR[2019]255% )
R CIIE8RAXEZENABRRKAR T
HEREENBA) ONBEREK[2019]1210%
mwﬂﬁ THRE AEETEBEESH &

EMEREERNEIEEREEEEHF
#%E%Aﬁﬁomﬁﬁm FRBTEREA
R¥0.6867T (&I #113.16% : T H EMH S
HEREEEEHFYVNETERARY0.73T
FAEREZFRGTEEARK0.6267T ' FFiE4
14.256%  AEEBE TEBSEHNSEEHRE
EEAEFTE-
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Production Volume

In order to facilitate the trial implementation of the
Dual Tariff Policy by Zhejiang Province, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2019
production plan for natural gas power generating
units based on the maximum demand within the
power grid. In response to the adjustment to overall
electricity procurement demand in Zhejiang Province
in 2019 and in order to meet the maximum demand
within the power grid, the relevant government
authorities optimised and made adjustments to the
annual production plan of the four power plants under
the Group, which decreased the production tasks
of the Group for the year accordingly. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s production
volume by natural gas was 84,015MWh (equivalent
to approximately 183.8 hours of full load power
generation), representing a decrease of 5.07% as
compared to 88,505MWh (equivalent to approximately
193.7 hours of full load power generation) in the
previous year.

The installed capacity of the Group’s photovoltaic
generating units is 578kW. The electricity generated
was mainly used to supplement the auxiliary power
consumption rate of the power plant, and the
remainder was sold to the power grid. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s photovoltaics
production volume was approximately 645MWh (2018:
approximately 420MWh), of which approximately
89MWh (2018: approximately 75MWh) was sold to
the power grid. During the year, the Group saved
power consumption cost of RMB302,000 (2018:
RMB185,000) from the above photovoltaic power
generation and realised a revenue from sales of
electricity of RMB174,000 (2018: RMB106,000).

M PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED

BEAGIMIARTHMIBHEERE  HEK
PR R e EREETERTHE -
—hi&%%mféﬂ%iﬁﬁéﬁégﬁiu B e
TE T NFERBBEESTRAR ERLE
WIBEFKIFERT HEBRSBPIERERT
BUREEHNFEREFEETTELELS
. /\$E.EA¢WE@§§ SR TR &

—NEFE+-A=+—HIFE A£H
Bi?fm KEE HB84,015K B (HEE R w3
TH183.8/\FF ) - B 4 [E88,505)K FLBF (48
B MEEEL193.7/ ) W A5.07% °

Kglaﬁtwﬁ%zﬂ LR 8 A578T FL - P 3

EXTTAERAERBAEER A T
1’%%%*% HE_T-—NF+_A=+—
HIEFE AEBXARBEEE BL645K
— T — \F: 4420k LB ) & R 489K L
E¢(4==—)\¢ %@75&&]1%)&%%%?%
FR - AEEEBEANRKBEEREAEHA
AR #302,0007t (=ZF— )\ : AR #¥185,000
L) ERETWFZ ARK174,000 (=

—\F: AR¥106,0007T) °
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Heat Sales Volume

Anji Power Plant under the Group provided steam for
manufacturers in proximity to its heating pipelines with
a maximum heating capacity of approximately 160
tons/hour.

In order to increase profits from the heating business,
the Group raised the heat selling price during the
year. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
average selling price of steam (inclusive of VAT) was
approximately RMB322.28/ton, representing an
increase of 18.84% as compared to approximately
RMB271.18/ton in the previous year. During the
year, as export enterprises had less demand for heat
consumption under the influence of Sino-US trade
war, the Group’s heat sales volume during the year
decreased by 6.41% to 97,639 tons as compared to
104,321 tons in the previous year. However, benefiting
from the rise in heat selling price during the year, the
Group’s revenue from sales of heat for the year still
increased by 10.97% to RMB28,740,000 as compared
to RMB25,899,000 in the previous year, contributing
a gross profit of RMB2,941,500 (2018: RMB823,000)
to the Group, representing an increase in the gross
margin of 7.05 percentage points to 10.23% from
3.18% in the previous year.

Fuel Cost and Natural Gas Usage

Bluesky Power Plant, Deneng Power Plant and Jingxing
Power Plant under the Group all use natural gas as
fuel for power generation, while Anji Power Plant uses
natural gas as fuel for power generation and heating.
Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group
and is provided by Zhejiang Province Natural Gas
Development Company, the sole supplier of the Group
and in Zhejiang Province.

ERE

AEBERATELETEMAHERE B IR

RIFHE T BRI AHARERH160M

BRERAHBEROFE XEERFRIRS
TERBER - BE_E—LE+-_RA=+—
HEFE AEBEHERANEEERFH
EENAREI22287 R EFEBHWHA
R¥271.187C F7418.84% - F R - A H A
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ$%%%ﬁm%%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%
KTHRMNER BERAEEARAFENERE
- FE104,321 W87 46.41% = 97,639 -
A XBERFAERER LR NEELRF
ERERKADNER EFE A R25,899,000
T R10.97% % A K #28,740,0007T : 5 Bk
FEFMAR®E2941,500 (ZE—NF: AR
#823,0007T) * EFME I FFE3.18% LFH
7.05 B D2 E10.23% °

BERERXARBE
AEETBERNER REESHRMREERE
FERARARSEERR M NEL ST EMAIE
ARARERBERHEBBME - RARER
S E ME— YRR RL SRR - WA AN B (TR AT
Bipm)E—Z BRI A RARAE AR
BEREMH
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Natural gas prices in Zhejiang Province are determined AT AR RAREBETIBENIE ZEREM
by the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform NEZESET RENIEABEENNER
Commission. According to the adjustments made BERFARCNIAEENEZER AR
by the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform RKARPIHERM EREERNREN) OFBEL
Commission under “Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial BI8[2019]1255% )  CHITE RN EZ R
Development and Reform Commission Regarding the FERXARMUERNBA) OF FRES
Adjustment of Gate Station Price for Natural Gas and 2019120048458 ) ETH AR AEE T B
On-grid Tariff” (Zhe Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 25) and BRAARENERBFIVNELARARKE
“Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial Development and B2TL TRAZEFRBU A RKARME2.887T - f&
Reform Commission Regarding the Adjustment of 1 4911.93% o

Gate Station Price for Natural Gas” (Zhe Fa Gai Jia Ge

[2019] No. 200 and No. 484) during the year, the price

of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of power plants under

the Group was adjusted downward from RMB3.27/m?3

at the beginning of the year to RMB2.88/m? at the end

of the year, representing a decrease of approximately

11.93%.

As the production volume and heat sales volume BEFAZETENERERL BE_ZE—N
declined during the year, for the year ended 31 FH+ZHA=T—HLFE" K%%W":&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ
December 2019, the Group’s total consumption of £ /528,469,488 5 K (B BIEHAA XA
natural gas was 28,469,488m? (including 9,175,600m? R 89,175,600 J7K) » # | 4 £31,122,000
for heating), representing a decrease of 8.52% as S HOR(EHREEMHEAXARE9,962,000
compared to 31,122,000m? (including 9,962,000m? ST K ) T RES.52% o A £ B ) 36 B 4 B {
for heating) in the previous year. The Group’s average BREH AR B G IK LR A R#587.997T (=&
unit fuel cost for power generation was approximately — J\4F %’JJEE%/\EMSM 937T) ' W EF
RMB587.99/MWh (2018: approximately RMB524.93/ B EF12.01% : B FH BRI AR B
MWh), representing an increase of 12.01% as BHEAR®E240.767C (ZF—/\F : TMEA
compared to the previous year. The average unit fuel R#219.9370) W EFE EH9.47% - BER
cost for heating was approximately RMB240.76/ton MAF BRI E N TEEERNF
(2018: approximately RMB219.93/ton), representing NAARRSBEBFEHERREF AR
an increase of 9.47% as compared to the previous HE_Z—NAFTA=1T—HLEFE K&
year. The increase in both the average unit fuel cost for %K%)\E%?Z,QO&OOOE REFEARK
power generation and for heating was mainly due to 69,402,0007T 32 N5.05% o KA Y X 7 fis 18 B 1
the rise in average price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) H(EETBWA (TEEXRBEBRA) R
for the year as compared to the previous year. For the ﬁ%’%ﬁﬂﬂﬁl?\)ttf BI# FFE101.80% &
year ended 31 December 2019, fuel costs amounted 320l B DB E98.51% RN EANAEE
to RMB72,908,000, representing an increase of 5.05% M EREEMRAREBRYSIZER % &
as compared to RMB69,402,000 in the previous TERHRXFAMBRYGEEBNHREER
year. Fuel costs accounted for 98.51% of the related 5 T B 8 B B8 R AN A Y ETE IR E A
revenue (i.e., volume tariff revenue (excluded revenue MERX URFALEEANSHET FHE
from photovoltaics power generation) and revenue BINR EFEEMATE -

from sales of heat), representing a decrease of 3.29
percentage points as compared to 101.80% in the
previous year. Since both the on-grid tariff and price of
natural gas applicable to the Group are VAT inclusive,
such decrease was mainly attributable to the greater
decrease in output VAT rate applicable to the relevant
revenue than the input VAT rate applicable to the
relevant costs during the year, as well as an increase
in average selling price of steam (inclusive of VAT) as
compared to the previous year.

18 PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED ﬂt?ﬁ *ﬁ‘rﬂﬁﬁn‘h
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Benefiting from the decrease in finance expenses
and the positive influences of adjustments in VAT
rates during the year, the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB54,854,000, representing
a significant increase of RMB9,274,000, or 20.35%,
as compared to RMB45,580,000 in the previous year.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the basic and
diluted earnings per share of the Company amounted
to RMBO0.12, representing an increase of 21.21% as
compared to RMBO0.099 in the previous year.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue and revenue from sales of heat.

Attributable to the decrease in output VAT rate
applicable to the main business of the Group and
an increase in the heat selling price during the year,
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to RMB292,209,000, representing an
increase of RMB10,584,000 or 3.76% as compared to
RMB281,625,000 in the previous year.

Operating Expenses

During the year, the Group’s operating expenses
mainly comprised fuel consumption, depreciation
and amortisation, staff costs and administrative
expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group’s operating expenses were RMB190,597,000,
representing an increase of RMB2,705,000 or 1.44%
as compared to RMB187,892,000 in the previous year.
The increase in operating expenses was a result of
the increase in fuel cost as the relevant input VAT rate
decreased and the rise in average price of natural gas
(inclusive of VAT) for the year.

BF %5 [ R

XERFATBAIR D RIEEFRH AR
MEAFE ARRBE_T—hLF+=A
T+t HUIEFEZEZRRELHEMNAAR
#54,854,0007T ' 88 _EFE AR ¥45,580,000
TEAME I N A R#9,274,0007T5020.35% ° &
—E-NFET+_A=+t—BHILEE AQA
EREAREERFABARK12T BEF
EERARB0.0097T1E HN21.21% °
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TLIE AN A R #10,584,0007T33.76% ©

HERAX

FR AEBENKEERAITEZRMRBER
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—NE+_A=1+—"BHULEFE AEBZEKE
B A AR®190,597,0007T & FFEE AR
¥187,892,0007T £ F+ A & #2,705,0007T =%
1.44% o 488 R 2 N =E E = A R R K A BE
HEEEEAERRE THAMENARFARXR
ARREWEHFHER LA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 e ST B S =3




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
’“'“IEJE“T &"*ﬁ

Profit from Operations

Benefiting from optimisation of power generation
mode and the positive influences of adjustments in
VAT rates, the Group’s profit from operations for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB101,612,000,
representing an increase of RMB7,879,000 or 8.41%
as compared to RMB93,733,000 in the previous year.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net finance
costs of the Group were RMB24,441,000, representing
a decrease of RMB4,955,000 or 16.86% as compared
to RMB29,396,000 in the previous year. The decrease
in net finance costs was primarily due to the Group
repaid certain interest-bearing borrowings during
the year, resulting in a decrease in relevant finance
expenses.

Income Tax

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the unified
tax rate of 25%. For the year ended 31 December
2019, income tax expenses of the Group amounted
to RMB28,931,000, representing an increase
of RMB4,195,000 or 16.96% as compared to
RMB24,736,000 in the previous year. The increase
in income tax expenses for the year was due to the
increase in profit before taxation for the year.

20 PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %?ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ@'_ﬁ S
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Earnings per Share and Final Dividend

For the year ended 31 December 2019, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Group
amounted to RMB54,854,000 (2018: RMB45,580,000).
The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted
to RMBO0.12, representing an increase of 21.21% as
compared to RMBO0.099 in the previous year.

At the board meeting held on 30 March 2020, the
board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.04 per share (2018: HK$0.035) for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Based on the 458,600,000
(2018: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue as at 30
March 2020, the board recommended the payment of
a final dividend amounting to HK$18,344,000 (2018:
HK$16,051,000).

Significant Investment Activities

During the year, the Group had no significant
investment activity.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year, the Group had no major acquisition
and disposal relating to its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar. As at
31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB48,893,000 (31 December
2018: RMB74,860,000), of which RMB3,162,000 (31
December 2018: RMB2,977,000) was denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar..

BREFRXEGRE
BE_Z-hF+-A=1+—BLLFE &&
B 4 %5 A% 3R B (b s A B A R #54,854,0007T

—T—)\F: AR#45,580,0007T) : FRE
ANBEBERANAARKI2TT BRLEFEEER
AR #0.0097T FFH21.21% °
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current
assets of RMB107,716,000 (31 December
2018: RMB122,484,000), current liabilities
of RMB363,096,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB313,658,000) and net current liabilities
of RMB255,380,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB191,174,000) with a current ratio of 0.30 (31
December 2018: 0.39). The current ratio was declined
mainly because certain loans were transferred from
non-current liabilities to current liabilities with reference
to the repayment schedule during the year.

Sources of funds of the Group are mainly cash inflows
from operating activities and loans granted by banks
and related parties. The Group regularly monitors
its gearing ratio to control its capital structure. At
the same time, the Group also regularly monitors its
liquidity position, projected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, as well as
maintains long-term sound relationships with major
banks to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
working capital requirements and future development
needs.

Debts

All the debts of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar and United States
Dollar. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
total debts of RMB489,835,000 (31 December
2018: RMB593,432,000), including related
party loans of US$19,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB137,431,000) (31 December
2018: US$19,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB135,205,000)), shareholder’s loan of
HK$150,790,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB135,075,000) (31 December 2018:
HK$144,062,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB126,227,000)) and lease liabilities of HK$400,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB358,000) (31
December 2018: HK$nil).
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Details of the Group’s debts as at 31 December of AEERZZE-—NERERZZTE—NFE+ZA
2019 and 2018 are listed below: =a-—J8 E’\Jﬁi‘%ufrl LU

2019 2018

—E—-NnEF —ZT—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARBET T

Unsecured loans from related parties EIRWER T E X 234,431 270,205

Unsecured bank loans guaranteed Fh Hﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ’]

by a related party 4K R R 1T 119,500 197,000

Shareholder’s loan IRERE R 135,075 126,227

Lease liabilities HEBE 829 -

Total gt 489,835 593,432
The above debts are repayable as follows: L EBHH R EEBPET

2019 2018

—E—-NnEF —ZT—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARBET T

Within 1 year —F R 303,917 257,705

Over 1 year but less than 2 years HBR—FEMFA 27,343 169,000

Over 2 years but less than 5 years HBAMFEALFA 158,575 166,727

Total st 489,835 593,432

Among the above debts, approximately
RMB273,335,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB261,432,000) were fixed-rated debts, of which
approximately RMB272,864,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB261,432,000) were denominated
in United States Dollar and Hong Kong Dollar, and
the remaining debts were denominated in Renminbi
and subject to adjustment in accordance with relevant
regulations of the People’s Bank of China, bearing
interests calculated at an interest rate of 3.92% to
4.90% (2018: 3.92% to 4.90%) per annum.

y 0

EUNEE®S Y AR®273,335,0007T

(ZE—NE+_A=Z+—HBH:HAR¥
261,432,000L) B EEBEH ERHARE
272 864,000 (ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—

t ) AR #6261,482,0007T ) A A E T R AT
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BHARRITHBBARDIBE ZFHNX3.92%E
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aeayyy f.f
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Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt (including interest-bearing borrowings,
shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) plus net debt. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 43.35% (31
December 2018: 48.87%).

Capital Commitments

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 25(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no
assets pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no
material contingent liability.

Exchange rate risk

The Group primarily operates its business in Mainland
China and most of the transactions are settled in
Renminbi. Except for certain cash, bank balances
and borrowings that are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar and United States Dollar, the Group’s assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in Renminbi.
The Group considers that its current foreign exchange
risk is insignificant and therefore has not hedged it
through any derivative for the time being. However, the
management of the Group will continue to monitor its
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risks should the need
arise.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 251
employees, excluding 2 temporary staff (31 December
2018: 265 employees, excluding 1 temporary
staff). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
total employees’ remuneration (including directors’
remuneration and benefits) was RMB28,903,000 (2018:
RMB29,414,000). The Group determines employees’
remuneration according to industry practices, financial
performance and employees’ performance. In addition,
the Group provides employees with training and
benefits, such as insurance, medical benefits and
mandatory provident fund contributions, with an aim to
retain talents of all levels for further contribution to the
Group.

Prospects

In 2020, the Group will push forward lean
management, step up the management of human
resources and deliver training sessions towards the
essential goals of efficient management and optimal
electricity generation model. Meanwhile, the Group
notices that the energy system reform in Zhejiang
Province will be continued in 2020 to accelerate the
progress in the reform of energy operation, electric
system and natural gas system. As a private clean
energy operator based in Zhejiang Province, the Group
will move forward in parallel with the reform and pursue
new business breakthroughs on the basis of its own
development.

EERFMBIR
RZE—NF+_A=+—8B XEEHH
1% EE EFTREEBRETI(=ZF
—N\F+_-_HA=+—H:265%EEB EFT
BE1ABRET) HE-_T—NLF+=A
=+—HLEFE BEEFHNAE (BIEESH
& N@EA) A AR28903,000T (ZZF— )\
F: AR¥29,414,0007T) - NEBRIEITHEE
Bl -G EEREERARETCELSHM -5
Hh REBNNE AR S RHIE AR IR -
BEREMkaEeERER UEESHBAR
ANF BB RAREBKS -

RE

20205 - A E BB HERBLER M58
ANER - AA T RABEBE - EM%*
R -RAF AEEFES - HIE/RZ
TEFREHERR L%‘JE&E EEE/ELTT
FEHEE RARBHEEHZEHEREN
K ERBRAIVENIANELBERERES
BASERKBRRERESK LEEHE
R -REXEBERRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 e ST B S 25




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS .
ERBHBRAN

Although the Group is exposed to a relatively higher
policy risk as the current capacity tariff, volume tariff
and gate station price for natural gas are determined
by the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission instead of the market, the Group still
believe that natural gas-fired power generating
business remains to be a promising industry for
development in the next five to ten years. As an
enterprise focusing on energy and embracing the great
energy era, the Group will transform into an integrated
energy supplier with “Energy + Technology” as the core
philosophy and dedicate ourselves to exploring the
development of diversified energy business for injecting
fresh impetus into the Group and enhancing its long-
term growth potential and shareholders’ value.

In the coming few years, apart from focusing on
expanding its installed capacity and heating business,
the Group will pursue new businesses such as auxiliary
power service, energy contracts management and
energy storage as its future development goals in order
to maximize benefits and returns to shareholders with
its utmost efforts.

In 2020, the epidemic of novel coronavirus has brought
significant social and economic impacts to China and
across the world. Nevertheless, the Group and its
power plants have conducted epidemic prevention
measures in strict accordance with relevant national
policies. The epidemic has not caused any material and
adverse impacts to the Group’s operation so far and its
production activities have remained normal.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WEI Junyong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 51, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in September
2015 and became the chairman of the Company in
June 2016. He was then appointed as an authorised
representative of the Company in March 2017 and
redesignated as an executive Director in June 2017.
Mr. Wei has also been the director of Puxing Tian
(HK) Limited (formerly known as “Amber Bluesky (HK)
Limited”), Puxing Neng (HK) Limited (formerly known
as “Amber Deneng (HK) Limited”), Puxing Xing (HK)
Limited (formerly known as “Amber Jingxing (HK)
Limited”) and Puxing Ji (HK) Limited (formerly known
as “Amber Anji (HK) Limited”) since August 2017. On
11 February 2020, Mr. Wei was appointed as a non-
executive director of Wanxiang Qianchao Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
and is ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu Weiding (being
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
indirectly interested in approximately 65.42% of the
issued share capital of the Company).

Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin Engineering University
in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering,
majoring in electronic engineering, and from China
Europe International Business School in 2008 with
a master’s degree in management, majoring in
business administration. Mr. Wei has over 20 years
of experience in corporate operations management
and has held various key management positions in
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
and its subsidiaries. Since 2009, Mr. Wei had acted
as a director, the president, an executive committee
member, the financial officer and the chief financial
officer of Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. Wei is
currently a director and the president of Shanghai Pu-
Xing Energy Limited.
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Mr. GU Genyong (“Mr. Gu”), aged 57, was appointed
as an executive Director in June 2017. Mr. Gu joined
the Group in December 2012 and was responsible
for work safety in electric power generation and the
construction management of the Group. He is currently
the general manager of the Company and the chairman
and director of Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Zhejiang Amber
De-Neng Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd.”),
Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as “Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd.”), Puxing (Anji) Gas
Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
“Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd.”),
Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as “Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd.”) and Wenling Juneng
Wind Power Generation Co., Ltd.

Mr. Gu has been in the power industry for over 30
years. Mr. Gu graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Technology in 1987, majoring in power plant thermal
energy, and from Southeast University in 1999 with
a master’s degree majoring in system engineering
(corporate management). Mr. Gu is a member of
Jiangsu Society of Engineering Thermophysics and a
member of the council of Zhejiang Province Hangzhou
Turbine Gas Turbine Machinery Innovation Centre. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Gu was the factory manager
of Dilong Thermal Power Plant of Nine Dragons Paper
(Holdings) Limited and an installation expert and
engineer of SINOPEC Jinling Petrochemical Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Chi Man (“Mr. Tse”), aged 66, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s degree
and a master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Texas, Arlington. Mr. Tse has
over 20 years of experience in finance and business
development management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse held various positions in a number
of organisations, including as a director of Chase
Manhattan Asia Limited, a mergers and acquisitions
director of Inchcape Pacific Limited, an executive
director of Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited
and a managing director of Dresdner Kleinwort Benson
(China) Limited. Mr. Tse worked at Imagi International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from 1999 to 2008
and was appointed as a director in 2004, and as the
chief financial officer in 2007 who was responsible for
overseeing the company’s accounting and finance,
administration and human resources functions. Mr. Tse
was also a member of the Design Institute Advisory
Board of Vocational Training Council.
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Mr. YAO Xianguo (“Mr. Yao”), aged 67, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Yao holds a master’'s degree in
economics from Fudan University. He is currently a
professor at the School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang
University, a member of The Expect Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation
of China, an executive vice-chairman of the China
Industrial Economic Association and a member of
the Zhejiang Government Advisory Council. Mr. Yao
is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network Co., Ltd. and
UniTTEC Co., Ltd., companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Yao was an independent
non-executive director of Zhejiang Asia-Pacific
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from December 2013 to
May 2017 and an independent non-executive director
of Wolong Electric Group Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang
Zheneng Electric Power Co., Ltd., companies listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from January 2012 to
January 2018 and September 2012 to January 2018,
respectively.

Mr. YU Wayne W. (“Mr. Yu”), aged 57, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in August 2012. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, a Master of Arts (Economics)
degree and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. Mr. Yu is
a Chartered Financial Analyst and is currently a
professor of City University of Hong Kong. Before
joining City University of Hong Kong, Mr. Yu was a
professor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an assistant professor of the School of Business at
Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu is currently an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Haers
Vacuum Containers Co., Ltd. and Richinfo Technology
Co., Ltd., companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises the
executive Directors above, namely, Mr. Wei Junyong
and Mr. Gu Genyong, and the secretary of the
Company, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Fung. The biographical
details of the senior management are set out under
the heading “Executive Directors” above and in below
respectively:

Mr. LAl Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”), aged 39, was
appointed as the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company in July 2017. Mr. Lai
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
with honours in Accounting and is a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 15 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and company
secretarial practice.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Puxing Clean Energy
Limited (formerly known as “Amber Energy Limited”)
(the “Company”) have the pleasure in submitting their
report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holdings and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the development, operation and management of power
plants fueled by natural gas in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). Details of the activities and other
particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 8 to 10 and pages 11 to 26 of this annual
report. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 11 to 26 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises entering
the natural gas power generation field in the PRC
and is aware of its responsibility for environmental
protection. The Group, which commits to sustainable
development of the environment and our society,
has continuously input resources and implement the
emission management policy of all kinds of pollutant
as well as other environmental protection management
standards to reduce the impact of its business
operation on the environment.
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For further information about the environmental policies
and performance of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019, please refer to the environmental,
social and governance report to be issued on or before
21 July 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
listed in Hong Kong, the Company is mainly governed
by the Companies Law (2020 revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
on the corporate level. The board of Directors (the
“Board”) has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, and each of its committee has its own term of
reference defining their respective rights, duties and
obligation.

On operation level, the Group conducted its businesses
in accordance with, among others, the Electric Power
Law of the PRC and all other relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC in relation to the electric power
industry, energy conservation, environmental protection
and safety production. In addition, all business units
of the Group have acted in compliance with the local
labour laws and regulations.

During the year, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, there is no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group which has a significant impact on its business
and operations.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and business associates to
fulfil its long-term goals and development. To enhance
its competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering high
quality services to its customers constantly. During
the year, there was no material or significant dispute
between the Group and its stakeholders.

For further information about the Company’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2019,
please refer to the environmental, social and
governance report to be issued on or before 21 July
2020.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The Group
has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and
addressing the concerns of stakeholders. Key risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group are listed below:
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Risk relating to price fluctuation and supplies
of natural gas

The business of the Group relies exclusively on natural
gas as fuel source which is currently provided by
the only supplier, Zhejiang Provincial Natural Gas
Development Company. If there is a shortage or
interruption in the supply of natural gas in Zhejiang
province, the business of the Group may be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, cost of natural gas
represented a significant proportion of the operating
expenses of the Group. As the gas prices applicable
to the Group are determined by the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission, increase in
natural gas costs will increase the operating cost of
the Group and may adversely affect its profitability.
If in the future, the government authorities decide to
increase the prices of natural gas, but not the on-grid
tariffs, or the on-grid tariffs are not adjusted accordingly
on a timely manner, or the rate of increase in on-grid
tariffs is less than the rate of increase in the prices of
natural gas, the Group will not be able to pass on the
increased costs to its customers, and may adversely
affect its profitability.

Follow the gradual opening of the natural gas market
and pipe network facilities in 2020, the Group will
actively follow up relevant information, communicate
with other natural gas suppliers on the premise of not
affecting the overall situation of the Dual Tariff Policy,
and strive to allow enterprise to organise high-quality
low-cost gas sources into the provincial pipe network
by multi-channels to reduce its production costs.
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Risk relating to changes in policies in relation
to electricity retail market

With further reform of the national electricity system
in the PRC, Zhejiang province is already one of the
pilot sites for electricity system reform. The change of
electricity retail market policies created opportunities
for the Group to expand and diversify its customer
base. However, the operations of the Group may also
be affected by entering the electricity retail market,
such as increased complexity of the business mode,
market fluctuation of exchange tariffs and other
factors. The Group will actively follow policy guidance,
intensify the research of state policies, and take various
measures to assess the risks and benefits that may
affect the Group by changes in the electricity market.

Risk relating to change in PRC government
policies to electric power industry

The PRC government is currently implementing policies
that are favorable to the business of the Group and
providing various incentives to the Group which may
no longer be available or become less favorable in the
future. If the current favorable government policies and
incentives are reduced or are no longer available in the
future, the financial results of the Group in the future
may be adversely affected.
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Risk relating to current liabilities position of the
Group

The Group had net current liabilities position since the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, which was
principally due to utilisation of short-term bank loans
and other borrowings for financing the Group’s capital
expenditure. The Group continuously seeks to convert
its short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings
to improve its net current liabilities position or settle
the short-term bank loans and other borrowings with
long-term loans. There can be no assurance that
the Group will always be able to raise the necessary
finance by borrowing from banks and other financial
institutions to finance its business, operations and
capital expenditure. In recent years, the intermediate
holding company of the Company, Shanghai Pu-Xing
Energy Limited (“Puxing Energy”), continuously provide
financial supports to the Group for its operations.
In the event that the existing banking and credit
facilities do not continue to extend with similar or more
favorable facilities to the Group and the Group fails
to obtain alternative banking and credit facilities on
reasonable terms or Puxing Energy discontinues its
financial support, the Group’s business and financial
position may be adversely affected. The Group may be
required to issue additional equity or debt securities
which could result in dilution to the equity interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness would
result in increased fixed obligations and could result in
operating covenants that restricts its operation.
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Risk relating to financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain risks arising from
financial instruments, such as credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk. Details of these risks are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The risk factors as mentioned above are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to thereto which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material at this
moment but could turn out to be material in the future.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the Group’s financial position as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 83 to 87 of this annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.04 (2018: HK$0.035) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The proposed
final dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
is expected to be paid on 24 June 2020 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on Wednesday, 10 June 2020.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on Thursday, 4 June 2020 (the “AGM”).
A notice convening the AGM has been issued to
the Shareholders together with this annual report,
which is also available on the Company’s website
(www.pxcleanenergy.com) and the HKEXnews website
(www.hkexnews.hk).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
in the following periods during which day no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered:

(i)

from Monday, 1 June 2020 to Thursday, 4 June
2020 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible
to attend and to vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 29 May 2020; and

on Wednesday, 10 June 2020, for the purpose
of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 9 June 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 220 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s securities listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

No share was issued during the year. Details of the
shares issued by the Company are set out in note 23(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 23(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page 88
of this annual report, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no
retained profits available for distribution. Pursuant
to the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the
share premium account of the Company can be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. Accordingly, based on the future projection
of the Group’s profit and cash inflows from operations
and the anticipated ability of the Group to obtain
continued bank loans and financial support from
its intermediate parent company, Puxing Energy,
the Directors believes that the Group will generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
fall due in the next twelve months. Accordingly, the
Directors determined that the distributable reserves of
the Company (including share premium, contributed
surplus and accumulated losses of the Company) as
at 31 December 2019 was RMB216,319,000 (2018:
RMB216,535,000).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
There was no donation made by the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the shares of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme
as at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, 90.16% and
99.29% of the Group’s revenue were attributable to the
to the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group, respectively.

The Group had only one natural gas supplier during the
year. All purchase (not including purchases of capital
nature) for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
attributable to this supplier.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholders, who to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any interest in these major
customers and supplier.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. GU Genyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jinquan (resigned on 29 July 2019)
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (resigned on 29 July 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
from each of the independent non-executive Directors
and considers them to be independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and
(9) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the publication of the 2019 interim report are set out
below:

()  Mr. Wei Junyong was appointed as a non-
executive director of Wanxiang Qianchao Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and is ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu
Weiding (“Mr. Lu”) (being the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company indirectly interested
in approximately 65.42% of the issued share
capital of the Company), on 11 February 2020;
and

(i)  The remuneration of Mr. Gu Genyong was
adjusted to RMB44,000 per month with effective
from 1 January 2020.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 27 to
31 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Yao Xianguo and Mr. Yu
Wayne W. will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, the Group has carried out significant
transactions with its holding companies as detailed in
note 26(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
Save as disclosed above, no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding
companies or a subsidiary of its holding companies
was a party or were parties and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors was interested in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is subject to approval
by the remuneration committee of the Board with
reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and results of the Group. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group comprises one Director and
four individuals, which included the senior management
of the Company. Details of the highest paid individuals
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section
467 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2019. In addition, the Company has taken out and kept
in force appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, to the knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under 18 years old had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) which were required to be: (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or (i) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2019, the following
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of
the Company) had, or were taken or deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares/ Percentage of

Capacity/ underlying shares issued share

Name of Shareholder Nature of interests held (ote capital

51 FR¥s 4 HHEA HEETERE

g g HaME B 88 (e Bt

Puxing International Limited Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
(formerly known as “Amber EmiEs

International Investment Co., Ltd.”)

(“Puxing International”)
EEBEBERRAR]

(RIS [ENBIBRKRERR AT
(ME2=HE])

Puxing Energy (ot ?) Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
T BB e () corporation

40 % B 1l 2

China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
(“China WanX|ang ) (note 2) __corporation
PEERZERER D R EE S
([FEERm]) ““f?
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
( Mlnsheng Life Insuranoe ") (ote 2) __corporation
REASREROBERA R EE R
(TREASRRE]) ™ H
Mr. Lu (ote2) Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
B S (e __corporation
RIEEEEw
Ms. Li Li (oted Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
ZEE Zr L (e A (B 7 =
BC Greater China Opportunities Beneficial interest 40,000,000 (L) 8.72%
Fund SPC, acting on behalf of B

and for account of BC New
Energy Fund SP (a segregated
portfolio thereof)
RERPERERE S (REXEAR
BC New Energy Fund SP
(REATERBESZ

BUAEMS)(TE _
BC Asset Management Limited " Interests in a controlled ' 40’,2@@,5000 L 8.72%
BC Asset Management Limited (%4 corporation S U

5 2 [ 1 2k SVl
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M The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
shares.

(2) These shares are held by Puxing International, which is owned as
to 100% by Puxing Energy, which is owned as to 57.14% by China
Wanxiang which in turn is, inter alia, 71.67% owned by Mr. Lu and
20% by Shanghai Guandingze Co., Ltd.* (“Shanghai Guandingze”),
a company owned as to 86.67% by Mr. Lu. The remaining 42.86%
of Puxing Energy is owned by Minsheng Life Insurance, which is
owned as to 37.32% by China Wanxiang and 6.52% by Shanghai
Guandingze. Therefore, Puxing Energy, China Wanxiang, Minsheng
Life Insurance and Mr. Lu are deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Puxing International.

(3) Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

(4) These shares are held by BC Greater China Opportunities Fund
SPC, acting on behalf of and for account of BC New Energy Fund
SP (a segregated portfolio thereof) which is owned as to 100% by
BC Asset Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other persons (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO as at 31 December 2019.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES

The transactions as set out in note 26(a) to the
consolidated financial statements fall within the rules
14A.76(1) and 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, which were
fully exempted from the Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

* For identification purpose only
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 March 2020, the Board proposed to change
the name of the Company from “Puxing Clean Energy
Limited” to “Puxing Energy Limited” and to change the
dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company from “&
EEEEEAR AR to “LEFEEBR AT (the “Proposed
Change of Company Name”). The Proposed Change of
Company Name is subject to (i) the passing of a special
resolution by the Shareholders approving the Proposed
Change of Company Name at the AGM; and (i) the
approval of the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman
Islands having been obtained for the Proposed Change
of Company Name.

Save as disclosed above, details of other significant
events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS REPORT
EFEHE

B8 A A

ARAEBEMBRRNFBERNES B R
wMIEE14

BEHANRRERE

REAR Eﬂﬁgfﬂé’]éﬂ&ﬁi%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
EAﬁﬂléﬁzﬁ —NF+_A=1+—BLF
F&@iﬁ#ﬁiﬁﬂ;ﬁ AR AR EHRAR

EHRRIFRE -

ERFEXREA

ARREZZECEEHARERE—_T—N
FH-_A=t-HLFENFEEE-

REHRER

RZT_ZF=A=1+H EFGERBER
7] 8 [Puxing Clean Energy Limited | &
2 & [Puxing Energy Limited | » # & 4h X &)
X &R F%Eiﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁJ A f%_%
BREARAA] ([EREXARERE]) -
ERAREBAFIREARRBAFAE
BEFHNAABENERIRES: (u)E‘fi%;x
FRRRIZEHENGERENES AATMERR
BETTRIIEE

B EXFBEEIN AEENMERRZEM
ERFENFRHARKRE M B HRRME28 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 e ST B S 49




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEWE

AUDITORS

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the AGM. There has been no change in
auditors of the Company in any of the preceding three
years.

By order of the Board

WEI Junyong
Chairman

30 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximise
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company has adopted and applied the
principals of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company will
continue to upgrade internal control system, strengthen
risk control management and reinforce the corporate
governance structure.

The Company has complied with the code provisions
and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended
best practices set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors regarding the compliance with the Model
Code. All Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises:

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. GU Genyong

Mr. LI Jinquan (resigned on 29 July 2019)
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (resigned on 29 July 2019)

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance
of core competence with regard to the business of
the Group so as to provide effective leadership and
the requisite expertise to the Group. The executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
have extensive management experience in the
Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 27 to 31 of this annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience
and qualifications.
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Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
The chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
are separately held by Mr. Wei Junyong and Mr. Gu
Genyong, the general manager of the Company,
respectively.

The Chairman provides leadership to, and oversee
the functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts
in the best interests of the Group, and the Chief
Executive has the overall responsibility for carrying out
the strategy and direction set by the Board and for
managing the Group’s business.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other
occasions when warranted by circumstances. During
the year, the Board held four meetings. Notice for
regular Board meetings are given to each Director at
least fourteen days prior to the meeting whereby the
Directors can put forward their proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers
are then circulated to the Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code
provision A.2.7 of the Listing Rules, the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors (the “Chairman and INED
Meeting”). During the year, a Chairman and INED
Meeting was held.
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Number of meetings and Director’s attendance ERRBREEHERER

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s %%ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ%“ﬂ%%ﬁAM&%$
general meeting and the meetings of the Board, the g BEREES FNEESREREESS
audit committee, the remuneration committee, the a#&ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁi#iﬂﬁﬁ FENFBEH
nomination committee and the Chairman and INED 2 NE

meeting held during the year are set out below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination Chairman
General Board Committee Committee Committee and INED
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EERERT
EZE EBrEZEE HFHEESE 2 R&EZEE  FHTEE
BREXE 2E i i g =i
Executive Directors
BiTES
Mr. WEI Junyong 2/2 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1
BOBEE TEA
Mr. Gu Genyong 2/2 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
BRKEE TEA TEA TEA TEA
Non-executive Directors
ERTES
Mr. LI Jinquan (resigned on 29 July 2019) 1/2 1/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
ZeREE(RZE-NEFLAZTNBEA) TEA TEA TEA TEA
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (resigned on 29 July 2019) 0/2 1/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
RREXE(RZZ-NFLAZTNRER) TER TEA TEA TER
Independent non-executive Directors
BUEHITES
Mr. TSE Chi Man 2/2 4/4 2/2 1/1 N/A 1/1
WEXEE TEA
Mr. YAO Xianguo 0/2 2/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 01
hEBEEAE
Mr. YU Wayne W. 2/2 4/4 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1
AR E TEA
: AT O
2 R ALl
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Relationship amongst Directors

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships amongst Board
members and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive.

Non-executive Directors

The term of appointment of all non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are
three years, subject to earlier termination in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, Listing
Rules or applicable laws and regulations. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors (including non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

In determining the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Board follows the
guidelines as set out in the rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao Xianguo
and Mr. Yu Wayne W. and concluded that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Upon appointment to the Board, each new Director
receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
package to ensure that he understands the business
and operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of
his responsibility and obligation under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are kept informed on the developments EERREREZEREENEERARER
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes mis 28t NEEBRE EmBRARE@EETE
in the business markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil REBITRBE SN ARAERABRUER
their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing RESTHBEGRMAEERE-

Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors
will be arranged by the Company when considered

necessary.

During the year, the Company has coordinated training FAARAEREBELEMRANREEEE R
courses for the Directors in accordance with the Listing RESTHZIRE - BBRESREHOCS
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. According EERNFALHENUTHESERE ([FHER
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors EER])

participated in the following continuous professional
development (“CPD”) during the year:

Type of CPD

HESXERER
Reading
materials
Attending relevant to
training the
courses Company or
and seminars its business

L LE
SMEYRE AERBEN

st B & #
Mr. WEI Junyong BHEBLEAE v v
Mr. GU Genyong BAMR K St 4 v v
Mr. TSE Chi Man HFEXSLE v v
Mr. YAO Xianguo ok 5o B % A 4
Mr. YU Wayne W. BRI EE v v
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Board

Audit Committee @

gnzag U

The Board established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) and a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in June 2009, and a
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
in April 2012 (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
The term of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are posted on the Company’s website
and the HKEXnews website. Members of the Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. TSE Chi Man (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

All members of the Audit Committee are independent
non-executive Directors who possess sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise and
experience to fulfil their duties.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of
communication between the Directors, the external
auditors and the internal auditors with regards to their
duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and assisting
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
independent review and supervision of financial
reporting, by satisfying itself as to the effectiveness
of the internal controls of the Group, and as to the
_‘ad.equacy of the external and internal audits.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. The attendance records are set out
under the section headed “Number of meetings and
Directors’ attendance” in this report.

At the meetings, the Audit Committee performed, inter
alia, the followings: (i) reviewed the Group’s financial
statements for 2018, the draft of 2018 annual report
and the draft of 2018 annual results announcement
and recommend the same to the Board for approval;
(i) reviewed the Group’s interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2019, the draft
of 2019 interim report and the draft of 2019 interim
results announcement and recommended them to
the Board for approval; (i) reviewed the reports on
risk management and internal control of the Group
to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems; (iv)
reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and (v) reviewed the proposed
audit fee for 2018 and recommended the re-
appointment of the external auditors to the Board for
consideration and final approval by Shareholders at the
AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Remuneration Committee
are:

Mr. YAO Xianguo (Chairman)
Mr. WEI Junyong
Mr. TSE Chi Man

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
two independent non-executive Directors and the
Chairman, and is chaired by an independent non-
executive Director.
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The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board in relation to the remuneration packages and
benefits of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group to ensure the relevant individuals are fairly
rewarded in light of their contribution to the Company
with reference to their performance, and that they
receive suitable incentives to maintain high standards
of performance and to improve the Group’s and their
own performance. In connection with the review of the
remuneration package, no Director shall be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.

At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
performed, inter alias, the following: (i) reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group; and (i) made
recommendation to the Board to enter into the service
contracts for the re-appointed Directors.

Remuneration paid to senior management

Remuneration paid to senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 by
band are as follows:
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Nomination Committee

The current members of the Nomination Committee
are:

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises
two independent non-executive Directors and the
Chairman, and is chaired by the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for, amongst other things, (i) reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and the measurable objectives set by
the Board for implementing the Board’s diversity policy
annually, and making recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to the Board according
to the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable
to be qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors
annually; and (v) deciding whether a Director is able to
and has adequately carried out his duties as a Director.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to the diversification of Board
members since 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s
business. All Board appointment will continue to
be made on a merit basis with due regards for the
benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Group adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) with effect from 1 January 2019,
and is disclosed as below:

1. Objective

2.1

When making recommendations regarding
the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation
the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(@) Reputation for integrity;

(b) Commitment in respect of sufficient
time and relevant interests;

.I/J:\_\ 2=y \A#E( =

AEBBE T NF— A - HERRRERK
R(MBEBEE])  FEREOT:

1. A

1.1 The Nomination Committee assists the 11 REZESERNESSRHEHBD &
Board in making recommendations to the ZHEEEREFEIHERNESS
Board on the appointment of Directors, and REER-
succession planning for Directors.

1.2 The Nomination Committee shall nominate 1.2 h% ERARNEEZTGRAGEA
suitable candidates to the Board for it to N EESERLRARRHERS
consider and make recommendations to ﬁéﬂﬁ%ﬁ‘\ikf?c/*%%% HE
Shareholders for election as Directors at EeRTAEEIEMERREZTHR-
general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies.

1.3 The Nomination Policy provides the key 1.3 REABKGRPRERZESNIERE
selection criteria and principles of the MEBREERMEANETEHERZ
Nomination Committee in making such ERRA -
recommendations.

2. Selection Criteria 2. BEER
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(c) Diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, ethnicity, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industrial
experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(d) The strength of the candidate and the
contributions that can be made to the
Board;

() Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of independent non-
executive Director; and

() Any other relevant factors as may
be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to
time, as considered appropriate.

The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Company’s
Article of Association, the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED
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3.3 For procedures for Shareholders’ nomination
of any proposed candidate for election
as a Director, please refer to “Procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director” set out in “Corporate
Governance” under the “Investor Relations”
section of the Company’s website.

3.4 The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

4. Approval and Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy has been approved by the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy. Any subsequent amendment of
the Nomination Policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the
Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee performed,
inter alias, the following: (i) reviewed the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board; (i) reviewed
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and (iii) reviewed and recommended two
retiring Directors for re-election by Shareholders at the
2019 annual general meeting.
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On 30 March 2020, the Nomination Committee, having
reviewed the Board’'s composition, nominated Mr. Yao
Xianguo and Mr. Yu Wayne W. to the Board for it to
recommend to Shareholders for re-election at the AGM.
The nomination was made after considering the skKills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the retiring Directors, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity. The Nomination
Committee had also taken into account the respective
contribution of the retiring Directors to the Board and
firm commitment to their roles, and it was satisfied
with the independence of Mr. Yao Xianguo and Mr. Yu
Wayne W. having regard to the criteria laid down in the
Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 of the CG Code including (i) the
development of policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (iii) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the code of conduct applicable to the employees of
the Company and the Directors; and (iv) reviewing
compliance of the Company with the CG Code and the
disclosure in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and that of the results and cash flows in
the relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently in accordance
with appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and
the related interpretations, and made adjustments and
estimates are prudent and reasonable.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB255,380,000. In view of
the circumstance, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Based on the future projection of the Group’s profit
and cash inflows from operations and the anticipated
ability of the Group to obtain continued bank loans and
financial support from an intermediate parent company,
Puxing Energy, the Directors believe that the Group
will generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the next twelve months.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that there are no
material uncertainties related to events or conditions
which, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 73 to 82 of this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the Company’s auditor, KPMG,
provided to the Company its audit services in relation
to the review of interim financial report and audit of
annual financial statements. The audit fee paid/payable
to KPMG in respect of the audit services provided was
approximately RMB1,200,000. There was no non-audit
service provided by KPMG during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”) is an employee of the
Company and was appointed as the secretary of the
Company on 21 July 2017. The biography of Mr. Lai
is set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Lai has taken
no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
_.Rules in the year ended 31 December 2019.
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SHAREHOLDING ANALYSIS I #E 2 A
Based on the Register of Members of the Company, BREARANBERZM AR _ZE—LF
the shareholding distribution of the Company as at 31 +-A=+—HORESHLOT :

December 2019 is set out as below:

No. of % of issued

No. of % of Shares share

Size of shareholding Shareholders Shareholders held capital

EE#T

HREE BREAE ERFESL FERGHEE EREESH

1-1,000 1-1,000 59 36.88 5,822 0.00

1,001 - 5,000 1,001 - 5,000 92 57.50 193,000 0.04

5,001 - 10,000 5,001 - 10,000 3 1.88 23,990 0.01

10,001 - 100,000 10,001 - 100,000 5 3.13 238,000 0.05

100,001 and above 100,001 XA £ 1 0.63 458,139,188 99.90

Total &5t 160’ 100%  458,600,0002 100.00

Notes: Mo T -

1 The actual number of investors is much greater as many shares 1 HRTEZROEFNATHE EFRESEPREE
are held through intermediaries including Central Clearing and EG (PREHERSG) ERAREEHERSRER
Settlement System of Hong Kong (CCASS). Fo

2 99.90% of all the issued shares of the Company were held through 2 KRARFFBEE BTN T 99.90% 4 /% 5 iE B R4
CCASS. HEGRHE-

Details of the substantial Shareholders are disclosed FERR E@Ei"ﬁﬁé\zﬁiéﬁ&%46i48 B2

in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions of MEETERRIERT R ARE | —EHE-

Substantial Shareholders” in the Directors’ Report on

pages 46 to 48 of this annual report.

Based on publicly available information and within the BEAREREREZEERMA R jli‘?“

Directors’ knowledge, approximately 34.58% of the A=+—8H Am/\j:?ﬁﬁfx’]34.58%$

shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were held by BRG] ARBFEREMED 7,%104.685

the public as at 31 December 2019 with a public float s8I

capitalisation of approximately HK$104.68 million.

68 PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED ﬂt% EERATE. :

s g



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Certain important Shareholders’ dates in the
coming financial year are set out in the “Shareholder
Information” on page 4 of this annual report.

2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

At the 2019 annual general meeting held on 10
June 2019 at Kowloon Room |, Mezzanine Floor,
Kowloon Shangri-La, 64 Mody Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, 77 participants attended the meeting.
Two executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors,
including the Chairman (who is also the chairman of
Nomination Committee) and the chairman of the Audit
Committee, attended the meeting along with the senior
management and external auditor of the Company.
There was a high level of votes approving the following
major items:

- Review and consider of the 2018 audited
consolidated financial statements (98.09%)

- Declare of 2018 final dividend (98.13%)
- Re-elect of retiring Directors (98.09%)

—  Re-appoint of KPMG as the Company’s auditor
(100%)

- Grant a general mandate to allot and issue new
Shares not exceeding 20% of the Shares in issue
(98.09%)

- Grant a general mandate to repurchase Shares of
not exceeding 10% Shares in issue (98.09%)

- Extend the general mandate to allot and issue
new Shares by adding the repurchased Shares
(98.09%)
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At the extraordinary general meeting held on 4 July
2019 at Kowloon Room |, Mezzanine Floor, Kowloon
Shangri-La, 64 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
69 participants attended the meeting. Two executive
Directors and two independent non-executive
Directors, including the Chairman (who is also the
chairman of Nomination Committee) and the chairman
of the Audit Committee, attended the meeting along
with the senior management of the Company. There
was a high level of votes approving the proposed
change of the name of the Company (100%).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises Shareholder’s rights in
exercising control proportionate to their equity
ownership. As one of the measures to safeguard
Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at the Shareholder’s meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of Director(s),
for Shareholder’s consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meeting
will be voted by way of poll, which is conducted and
scrutinised by the Company’s share registrar. Poll
results are announced and posted on the Company’s
website and the HKEXnews website.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written request to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specify in such
request; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the submission of such request. If within
twenty-one days of such submission the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, Shareholder(s) may
do so in the same manner.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong or by email for the
attention of the secretary of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office of the Company or at the share registrar
of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such written notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if
the written notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such written
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. Accordingly, if a
Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting of the Company wishes to propose
a person for election as a Director at the general
meeting, he/she can deposit a signed written notice
of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and a signed written notice by that person
of his/her willingness to be elected together with his/
her particulars (such as qualification and experience)
and information as required to be disclosed under rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head office of the
Company at Tower I, No.32 Lingyin Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou 310007, Zhejiang Province, PRC or at the
share registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company (in both English and Chinese) is available
on the Company’s website and the HKEXnews
website. During the year, the Company’s constitutional
documents was updated to reflect the change of the
Company’s name in July 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The Board should ensure that review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The Group has not established an internal audit
department and its internal audit function is maintained
by the financial management department of the
Company with the supervision of the Audit Committee.
During the year, the Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee, has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The Board is satisfied
that, based on the information provided and on its
own observation, the present risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s dividend policy enunciated at the time
of its initial public offering in 2009 is that it will pay
approximately 20%-30% of the net profit attributable to
the Shareholders as dividend. However, the payment
and amount of any dividends in the future will be at
the discretion of the Board and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions, cash
requirements and availability, and other factors. There
is no assurance that the amount of dividend payment
or the timing of such payment, or whether the dividend
distribution will occur as intended.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Puxing Clean Energy Limited

(formerly known as “Amber Energy Limited”)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Puxing Clean Energy Limited (formerly known as
“Amber Energy Limited”) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 219,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M 2 BE R

BEEZRARAT (B IRARERRL
Bl RERZBIZMEARE

(REESHEEMALZB R A)

=z
=

HMEEAFESIE210EMBAEEREARA
B (A8 [3RIAERARAAL) (TERA)
LREMBEAR (TEEE])WEREMBHRE
BERZZE-NF+ZA=+—BKEEH
BARRAKRBHEZB EFENFEEGER &
EHEGERAEMEERAR SaEREHREK
HERSRER UMBRIZEHTHRRME
R &R A S R M AL

BPIRR ZEREVBRRCKRER S
AR (TBRSHEREEE])AEM
R BIER B 5 S 2 R (TRIBR B M s 22 A1 D)
EEMAARMRRTESRER_F-NF+=
AZT - HAZHGEAMBRRAREEEZE I
FEZEAMBRALGEATRE IEE
REBRAGINBEEREZ SRS

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —Z—hWEFFERE %3

e 3



B M 2B AR S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOhT

B M 2 BE R

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

A EREREEEMED

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements

FELR R AR I T 2b)

The Key Audit Matter
EE R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMEFNAEEZEIR

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB255,380,000.
RZEBE-NEF+A=+—HB BE5ERHEEFHE
A R #255,380,0007T °

The directors evaluated the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern based on projections
of the Group’s profit and cash inflows from
operations and the ability of the Group to obtain or
renew bank loans and other financing facilities and
obtain financial support from an intermediate parent
company to finance its continuing operations. As
a result of their assessment, the directors believe
that the Group will generate sufficient cash flows
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due in
the next twelve months and concluded that there
are no material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
EERBEHEEE RN RGERSMAR TR LA K
EEERGSHRBEHRRTERREAMBESE RIKERH
BERARESVBIBEUAREBELERHESD
BRI E RSB B L ER ) KT hE EF
RREEEHGEERHNREREABRNENK
R4 {6 A B EREY B & - W 4R 4 R R A B R AE {E )
FHERHEEERBELERENIENEARBENES
FMABENERNTHERE -

Our audit procedures to assess whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern included the
following:

BB EFEETEREREEBEANTEE
MHEENBEAATEEESENFELCERNESE
BARRE BEATEE:

o walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over the assessment of the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

e HEKFERBATFTAARTHERES
EEERELLERNTEN AN ETNRT
MITREEMR:

° comparing the future expected cash flows
in management’s cash flow forecast with
the Group’s business plan approved by the
directors;

e KEBEMNHEeRETRAPHRKERR SR
EREEECESHANERAEETHER:

° comparing the available bank and other
financing facilities and arrangements with
underlying documentation and assessing the
impact of any covenants and other restrictive
terms attached thereto;

e HBERARTLEMHERGE RTHEGHX MG
HETT EE R B AT ik B8 BAT &) 1 fr] 2 5 % EL A BR 1l 1%
RFRFIERE R E
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The Key Audit Matter
E iR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERMEAPRNTEEZEIEN

We identified the assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern as a key
audit matter because the Group has been in a net
current liabilities position since 2012 which has
increased the risk that the Group may not be able
to continue to operate as a going concern and
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to forecasting capacity tariff,
electricity volume tariff, annual power generation
volumes, natural gas prices and gross margins
and in assessing the ability of the Group to renew
or obtain new bank and other financing facilities
upon expiry of the existing bank and other financing
facilities.
BME#THESRERELCENRNTER —HH
RESFE DHREEEE_ZT——FE—HER
FERBAERR WIEMT EEESCRERFELS
EREBEcEnAR RaRFEEEERERLEN
BENTDEARERENS TRE LA CEREE
AREEE TEEETE 2FELEE RAREREK
EME -URFHEEERRERITREMBESE
BN MERRITREMBEFEENE NS
73 °

A PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & 22

assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing bank and other financing
facilities upon maturity by performing a
retrospective review of past renewal or roll-
over history of banking and other financing
facilities in prior years, and inspecting loan
agreements and underlying documentation
for bank loans and other financing facilities
borrowed and repaid after year end;
FREBPUERNBEFEZRITEREMBMERE
EENSBERENLCE UTHEEEREA
RITREMBEEED RS ETERXBRE
2R RBERFEREEBARENZRTT
NEMEEEE 2 &R & AE R

evaluating the key assumptions adopted
by management in the preparation of the
cash flow forecast, including capacity
tariff, electricity volume tariff, annual power
generation volumes, natural gas prices and
gross margins by comparing these key
assumptions with the historical performance of
the power plants, financial budgets approved
by the directors and terms of future electricity
supply as agreed with local governments;

A ERECRHERSREBAKFARANE
EZBRZX(DEREEE EEEE 2F%8E
B RARBREENE) ITHZZFFTERHK
HEBEHNELRR LESHENVEERE
N A& E 3 BUR A B R R B BIRFETHE

HERAT



The Key Audit Matter
E R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B M 2B AR S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERMEAPRNAEEZEIEN

o comparing future expected cash flows
with historical data, assessing whether

any variations were consistent with

our

expectations based on our understanding of

the Group’s business and considering

the

accuracy and reliability of past cash flow
forecasts made by management by comparing

them with the current year’s results; and

s BARAKEHBRSREBEFELBBETHLE
MEEBEEAEHNHARMERHEREE
BZBEBOES UMK EEBMELMBE
ReRnEBESFNREETLEEAEER

MRS R

° assessing the sensitivities of the key

assumptions adopted by management in

the

going concern assessment and considering

whether management had incorporated
bias in the selection of such assumptions.

any

e FEEEEERERLEFTATARANTIZR
BROFRMELEREREEEEZSHBRER

BEAEMRR-
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B M 2B AR S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

TUS! PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED ﬂé‘_’\
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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B M 2B AR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

S

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & £2

ERBREEEIETENNBRES &M
ERTREHE RS T EROIRREE U1t
S BT :

A SRR ER MBS A W
BRRFEEAHERRANER - R5+ &
MITE R 7 ARE G L AR - PA R IEEX
ARMEENETERE EARMEEN
Ei o REHRMFEM I RO B AR
Ay R = T E AR 51 B - Thl IR
AR R ERE RE WEBER R
B 2R BRABEE-

TRREET RN ARER  UERHE
BERNBAEF BEXMEAREERE
N EENERMEERERNEN-

HAEEFEMA T BRRNEE ENAE
SRt AR REEREN SR -




Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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ROFIT OR os

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BEr—F-NF+ A=

2019
—EF-AEF

RMB’000
ARE TR

292,209

(72,908)
(58,455)
(2,867)
(28,903)
(22,618)
(3,073)
(1,773)

101,612

453
(24,894)

(24,441)

6,611

83,782

(28,931)

Revenue W 25
Operating expenses HEMRX

Fuel consumption BRELE R
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
Repairs and maintenance HIERRE
Personnel costs B IR A
Administrative expenses THRAX
Sales related taxes HEMRBEBIE
Other operating expenses Hi &R
Profit from operations wERR
Finance income BRI A
Finance expenses R X

Net finance costs B AN F5R
Other income H AU A
Profit before taxation B %5 By ita F
Income tax it

Profit for the year E R T

54,851

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —ZT—NFFERE
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2018
—T-N\F
(Note)
(PR3E)
RMB’000
ARBTT

70,316

(24,736)

45,580
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PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018

- Db R — T\ &
(Note)

(PiF3E)

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

A ARE T NS

Attributable to: UT&FHRE:

Equity shareholders of the Company iN/NETE Eo g & 45,580

Non-controlling interests FEIE R -
Profit for the year E R 45,580
Earnings per share BERER

Basic (RMB) ER(ARE) 10(a) 0.099

Diluted (RMB) g (ARE) 10(b) 0.099
Note: T

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(g).

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these
consolidated financial statements. Details of dividends
payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note
23(d).
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e

= N7

B )

REMEZEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—FE—NEFF+-_A=+—HIFEF
2019 2018
- BRI — T\ &
(Note)
(F3E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTx PN S
Profit for the year i F 54,851 45,580
Other comprehensive income for the FERE M 2EIA
year (after tax and reclassification (BB REHSEAEE)
adjustments):
ltems that may be reclassified HEgoEHHERE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmmIER :
Exchange differences on translation BREBINHEB AT
of financial statements of U]
overseas subsidiaries M 5 =& (7,112) (12,939)
Total comprehensive income FRHEZEBNERE
for the year 32,641
Attributable to: LT&HRE:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREERE 32,641
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR A 2 -
Total comprehensive income FRHZEBNEE
for the year 32,641
Note: B 3 -
The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the AEEER T -NF—A—AEREBTEWEERER
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative BB R ERIE 165 - IRIBUL % LBREB T TES -
information is not restated. See note 2(e). RHIsE2(e)

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form
consolidated financial statements.

part of these
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FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R AR O 3R

At 31 December 2019
RZFE-NF+ZA=+—H

Note
B 5
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- B NMEE 11
Lease prepayments EREE 12
Intangible assets BREE 13
Deferred tax assets EIERIBEE 22(b)
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 & H 58 15
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEY 16
Current liabilities RENEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEBE 18
Trade and other payables ERE 5 Kk HMFKIE 19
Lease liabilities HEBE 20
Current taxation B ER T 18 22(a)
Net current liabilities RENEEFHE
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERZEE

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.

=S PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & 22#E

2019 2018
TE-AF EERivS
(Note)

(HM$5E)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT NS

1,058,397 RN
- 44,815
1,291 1,898
3,217 3,753
NP 1,111,672
14,697 14,829
44,126 32,795
48,893 74,860
107,716 122,484
303,431 257,705
52,979 52,767
486 -
6,200 3,186
363,096 313,658
PR (191,174)
807,525 920,498

FNE2190EMEME SN FRETHRE—

B e




FINANCIAL POSITION
R AR AR

At 31 December 2019

R-E—NF

2019
—F-AE

RMB’000
AREFR

135,075
50,500
343
11,735
33,209

230,862

576,663

40,149
535,983

576,132
531

Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Shareholder’s loan PR E R
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Deferred revenue B YL a8
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE
NET ASSETS EEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRGHE
Share capital )
Reserves T
Total equity attributable to equity AATCERREEN
shareholders of the Company HEER
Non-controlling interests FF 1258 AR 2
TOTAL EQUITY AR

576,663

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(g).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2020.

WEI Junyong
5 Bl
Director

EF

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.

&L -

ARBER=F—

B B B 75 3 4
B HtE2(0e) °

t+=—A=+—H

2018

— N\
(Note)
(H3E)
RMB’000
ARBTT

126,227
209,500

12,099
29,651

377,477

543,021

40,149
502,338

542,487
534

543,021

NE-A-ARBLETERNEERER

RERIFE165E - RIBUL T X LA T T EG

REFZEXN _T_TF-_A=tBHERRK

LT

GU Genyong

FOIE219B FTEH M A ELRE

5 o

AR K
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AeRREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARERRREE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium Teserve Teserve Teserve eserve profts Subtotal Interests equity
- 31 S ) A HER ,
BE ROGEE  AARE AHRE HE  EXER  REEN It Eq s
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Wit ARETT  ARETT ARMTR ARNTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTn ARETZ ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2018 R=F-\&
-R-BH58 40,149 91,230 24,189 306,883 52,741 (15,186) 21,333 521,339 534 521,873
Changes in equity for 2018 —§-0\EHEEH
Proft for the year Ehgf - - - - - - 45,580 45,580 - 45,580
Other comprehensive income E2EUA - - - - - (12,939) - (12,939 - (12,939
Total comprehensive income SEBAEE - - - - - (12,939) 45,580 32,641 - 32,641
Dividends approved in respect of BHENEERE
previous year 230 - (1,499 - - - - - (11,499) - (11,499)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 23c)v) - - - - 6,067 - 6,067) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 (Note) ~ R=F—)
t2R E +- Bf&R
(W) 40,149 79,731 24,189 306,883 58,808 (28,125) 60,846 542,487 534 543,021
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FARRBRFEE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity
EE R
& Rt &R Axfih Akt 1] ER G REEH it SRR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LI ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  AR%Tn  ARETn AREFR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 R§-1%
-f-BMEk ] 79,787 2,189 306,883 58,808 (28,125) 60,846 542,487
Changes in equity for 2019 “E-NEREEY
Proft for the year ERiEf - 54,854 54,854
Other comprehensive income E2ERA 1,112 - (1,112
Total comprehensive income 2AHALE 1112 ' 47,742
Dividends approved in respect of B ENEERE
previous year 28(c)l (14,097) - - (14,097)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 23(c)l¥) - ; (7,124) o
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-B-1%
tZAZt-ANgR ] 65,640 2,189 306,883 65,932 (35,287) 108,576 576,132 576,663
Note: B 5
The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the AEEER=ZZT—NF—A—BRALEBIEBWEEXNER
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative BB BF iR E RSB 165% - BIBUL 505 EBREK AT ES -
information is not restated. See note 2(e). B KT sE2(e) °
The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these FNE219EFIEMT AL EFHRE P BHRE—
consolidated financial statements. i)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEEESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_F—IF

Note
B 5

Cash flows from operating activities

CEEDFREERE

Profit for the year F g A
Adjustments for: KAHEIER -
Depreciation of owned property, BEVE BEREE
plant and equipment e 5(c)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE
- land use rights — T {F AR 5(c)
— other properties —HM¥E 5(c)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 5(c)
Amortisation of lease prepayments A H S #H 5(c)
Net finance costs B P AN F 58 5(a)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BE&
plant and equipment RIEEEFE 5(c)
Tax expense IR X 7(a)
Changes in working capital: %Eé‘i\ﬁiﬁb :
Decrease/(increase) in inventories B, ()
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JEHQ%% K H 5018
other receivables (), m
Increase in trade and other payables J‘ﬁ“ﬁg%&ﬁ’rﬂzm

and deferred revenue

A R S 5E M 2 0

Cash generated from operating KEEHMBHRE
activities

Interest paid 2 H S

Income taxes paid EFT1SH

Net cash generated from operating &E&FENFTEH
activities H&RE

2019
—F-AE

RMB’000
ARETR

56,162
1,337

349
607

24,441

1,120
28,931

167,798
132
(11,423)

2,907

159,414

(12,741)
(21,823)

124,850

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —Z—hWEFFERE

+=-A=

T —HIEFE

2018
—E-N\F
(Note)
(F5E)
RMB’000
AREF T

45,580

157,714
(623)
1,741

3,325

162,157

(18,011)
(13,863)

130,283
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.r\/\Iﬁﬁl)":E%

For the year ended 37 December 2019
BE_E—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2018
—F-0EF

Note RMB’000
DA ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities RZEFHRBRLRE

Interest received 2 F 2

Payment for purchase of property, WEWME BEK
plant and equipment BUENEN

Payment for intangible assets X EEEENE

446

(8,761)

Net cash used in investing activities R&FEFTAIREEE

Cash flows from financing activities RIZEEFEFABRLRE

Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERENERKD

Proceeds from interest-bearing FFEBEMENRIE
borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing BEFEBE
borrowings

Dividends paid to equity shareholders &1~ 28 A &) # 25 A% SR &Y
of the Company @5y

(8,315)

(278)
16(b) 65,000
16(b) (180,500)

23(d)(i) (26,724)

Net cash used in financing activities FiZ ;EEFTHAREFE

(142,502)

(25,967)

74,860

Net decrease in cash and HeRRELEEY
cash equivalents YRS
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BMBRERRL
1 January EEY
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=+—81
31 December RERBEEEY 16(a)
Note: B 5

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(g).

The notes on pages 91 to 219 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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TEEER-T—

B KT sE2(e)

FO1E219B TE T AL E

B e

2018
—E-N\F
(Note)
(PiF3E)
RMB’000
ARBTT

311

(13,098)
(2,505)

57,000
(161,500)

(11,493)

(115,993)

(1,002)

75,862

74,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Puxing Clean Energy Limited (formerly known
as “Amber Energy Limited”) (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 10 July 2009. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 4 July 2019, the
name of the Company and the dual foreign name
in Chinese of the Company have been changed
from “Amber Energy Limited 3RIHEER AR A F)
to “Puxing Clean Energy Limited & £ ZiEHR
A\ with effective from 11 July 2019 pursuant
to the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name issued by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands on 11 July 2019.

e B AR MY RE

HERBRERAN

EE2ZEBRARE (A1 [IRIBERER
2Rl (AR DR=ZFFNENA
NEERERESREMEE AN FE22
BRAVE(—NMAA—FEBZRER &K
BRIERT) EMK LSRR ERAF -
ARABBEOR-_ZETNFLA+EESR
BBMERZMARAR ([BRA]) R
EWm-ARRBREMKBRR (5[ RE
BONISXBEAER KERERE

BERARFAREARAZZT—NLFELAMNA
ABHRIRZER  ARFZEBRHP X
EFI X ZFEH [Amber Energy Limited
RIAERBR A ] E XA Puxing
Clean Energy Limited® £ 28 E R A
Al WREFASEHSAFEMEERR
T NFEAT+—BRENTREHE
gAfBEEE T —AFELtAt+—BRE
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘lT\

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(e) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

2 EBEARGIHE
(a) &HEH
It EFHHRETIRBEE S8
ﬁ%@UImA*E%E$QD%
B4 0 2 0 5 A B R B 7S R S 2 A
([ERGHRELED ] BIEFRAE
FA 2 18 B B0 B B 765 3R a5 2 B - B
SHER ([EEFESTEH])R2
B)REBRMEL M EER TR
ot EMBEBRRNMFEBZTE
% EmAR (T EMRE]) BB
BN -AEEFEMHTIESTR
RETXHE-

BERgrEREEECBMET
AEEBRTE ‘|’Hﬂﬁ§//\$)&jz—f

%EE%%E’J%MT& KIERT BRI 75
HEAER] - i FH2(e)E B VIR E AL
@J&%%Iﬁﬁ’]&ﬂaﬁﬂzﬁmﬁz
MR E KL M2 DA B B SRR
Ffr B2 BR 9 75 52 [ 3R By N 3@ 1 & Rt
BABZHBERR-



2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB255,380,000 (31
December 2018: RMB191,174,000). In view
of this circumstance, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and
its available sources of finance in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going
concern.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m = B RS AR Y AT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

Based on future projection of the Group’s
profit and cash inflows from operations
and the anticipated ability of the Group
to obtain continued bank loans and other
financing facilities and financial support
from an intermediate parent company,
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (“Puxing
Energy”), the directors believe that the
Group will generate sufficient cash flows
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due in the next twelve months. Accordingly,
the directors consider that there are no
material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and
have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the functional
currency of the Group’s subsidiaries located
in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). All financial information presented
in RMB has been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.
The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HKS$").

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & £2

2 ERSFBE &)

(b) MHBRREREE (F)

(c)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

()

(ii)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value.

Management reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests whether property, plant
and equipment suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication
exists. In accordance with note 2(l),
an impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. It is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next
financial period that are different from
assumptions could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & £2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates

(Continued)
(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are recognised
and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors.

(e) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)
IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the
related interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease,
SIC 15, Operating leases - incentives,
and SIC 27, Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the legal form of a
lease. It introduces a single accounting
model for lessees, which requires a lessee
to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low value
assets. The lessor accounting requirements
are brought forward from IAS 17 substantially
unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements
which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases
have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as
from 1 January 2019. The Group has elected
to use the modified retrospective approach.
Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under
IAS 17.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of
the changes to previous accounting policies
and the transition options applied are set out
below:

(i)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease
mainly relates to the concept of control.
IFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of
an identified asset for a period of time,
which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition
of a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts
that were entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019,
the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

AEE)

(i)

(i)

New definition of a lease (Continued)

Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under
IAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under IFRS 16 and contracts
previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for
a lessee to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance leases,
as was previously required by IAS
17. Instead, the Group is required
to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under
IAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.
As far as the Group is concerned,
these newly capitalised leases are
primarily in relation to property, plant
and equipment as disclosed in note 11.
For an explanation of how the Group
applies lessee accounting, see note

2(K)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e.
1 January 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease terms
and measured the lease liabilities for the
leases previously classified as operating
leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted
using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 January 2019. The
weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination
of the present value of the remaining
lease payments was 4.75%.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

@

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the
Group applied the following recognition
exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of IFRS 16:

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & £2

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of IFRS 16 in respect
of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases
for which the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application of IFRS
16, i.e. where the lease term ends
on or before 31 December 2019;
and

when measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, the Group
relied on the previous assessment
for onerous contract provisions
as at 31 December 2018 as
an alternative to performing an
impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BREFHBX(#)
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) EFtBIREE (£)
(Continued)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BRI RS R & BRI 165 [ E
(#%&)
(ii) Lessee accounting and transitional (i) REAAETEREHZE (£)
impact (Continued)
The following table reconciles the TRHEFHIR=_Z—N\F+=A
operating lease commitments as =t—BzEEEERE (H
disclosed in note 25(b) as at 31 WK FE25(0)FTIREE ) MR = F
December 2018 to the opening balance —NWF—A—BE®EREESR
for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 B2 B eR 2 B BR -

January 2019:

1 January
2019
—E-hE
—HA—H
RMB’000
ARBTRT
Operating lease commitments at RZZB—-NF+=ZA=+—RHZ
31 December 2018 #e T B AOE
Less: commitments relating to leases B BB RERL
exempt from capitalisation: ME R AL
- short-term leases and —FpHEBAR T —NF
other leases with remaining +ZA=+—H3%
lease term ending on or ZAEIEZ B E
before 31 December 2019 REMEE
Less: total future interest expenses B RRF B R R

Present value of remaining lease payments, ffF I S £ EF RELIR ~

discounted using the incremental FIAHENFRER
borrowing rate and total lease liabilities RZE—-—NFE—H—H
recognised at 1 January 2019 ERRAZHEARERS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation
to leases previously classified as
operating leases have been recognised
at an amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2018.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

(e) Changes in accounting policies (e)
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional

impact (Continued)

The following table summarises the

EREFEEX (#)

B BREE (&)

BB HREERF16% [HE

(%)

(i) EBEANEHEERFZE (A)

TS SR At BR A% BRI R B S R S

impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16 on A E165 B RN ERBER S B 5K
the Group’s consolidated statement of MEHFE
financial position:
Carrying Reclassification Carrying
amount ofland  Capitalisation amount
at 31 use rights of operating at1
December under lease lease January
2018  prepayments contracts 2019
RZF-\% ENnE RZF-1E
+ZA=t-B EHBELET GRS -A-H2
ZREE THERE BHEX(L REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Line items in the consolidated TRAEBMBREER
statement of financial position FlomBENGAUE
impacted by the adoption of HRKER:
IFRS 16
Property, plant and equipment nE BERIE 1,061,206 44,815 425 1,106,446
Lease prepayments Bfifie 44,815 (44,815) = =
Total non-current assets FRHEELE 1,111,672 - 425 1,112,007
Lease liabilities (current) BESE(RE) - = 148 148
Current liabilities nBaR 313,658 - 148 313,806
Net current liabilities rBaETE (191,174) - (148) (191,322)
Total assets less current liabilities ~~ ZEZHREHERE 920,498 = 277 920,775
Lease liabilties (non-current) REAE(FRE) - - 277 277
Total non-current liabilities FRBAREE 377,471 - 21 377,754
Net assets SEFE 543,021 - - 543,021
MHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE

n‘lT\

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

106

(iii)

Impact on the financial result and
cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities as at 1
January 2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in a positive
impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss, as compared
to the results if IAS 17 had been
applied during the year.

In the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the Group as a lessee is
required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element. The
capital element is classified as financing
cash outflows, similar to how leases
previously classified as finance leases
under IAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was
the case for operating leases under
IAS 17. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of IFRS 16
therefore results in a significant change
in presentation of cash flows within the
statement of cash flows.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %‘f_’\
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(iii)

Impact on the financial result and
cash flows of the Group (Continued)

The following tables may give an
indication of the estimated impact of
adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s
financial result and cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2019, by
adjusting the amounts reported under
IFRS 16 in these consolidated financial
statements to compute estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have
been recognised under IAS 17 if this
superseded standard had continued
to apply to 2019 instead of IFRS 16,
and by comparing these hypothetical
amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018
corresponding amounts which were
prepared under IAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

108

(iii)

Impact on the financial result and
cash flows of the Group (Continued)

Amounts
reported
under
IFRS 16

RS
BB EER
165282

&8

(A)
RMB'000
ARETR

Financial result for the year ended ik 41 EIPREH T & & 28
31 December 2019 impacted F16hTEZ
by the adoption of IFRS 16: BE-F-1%

+-A=+-H

LEEMEES:
Profit from operations EERH 101,612
Finance expenses BHBEY (24,894)
Net finance costs BBRRTE (24,441)
Profit before taxation Rt A 83,782
Profit for the year ERiH 54,851

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %‘f

EREEEEX (#)

() EFIBIREE (&)

B BHE&ERRF 165 [HE

(%)

(iii) HEXKEUBEERIRERE
WMReE(Z)

2019

—B-1f
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
Add back: related to
IFRS 16 operating
depreciation  leases as if
and interest  under IAS 17
expense (note 1)
ks R
REER
EhE L
#im: @R E152
MHREEN EEEHE
FIORAER BRSO
HERX &% (M)
(B) (©)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT  ARMTR

1,686 (1,646)
3 £
3 -

1,117 (1,646)

1,717 (1,646)

Hypothetical
amounts

for 2019

as if under
IAS 17

AR R R
hE 1]
ST 2

k- £ -3
]
(D=A+B-C)
RMB'000
ARETT

101,652
(24,863)
(24,410)
83,853

54,922

2018
“2-)f

Compared
to amounts
reported for
2018 under

IAS 17

LaBEER
R
FITRERZ
“F-)\#&
o8

RMB'000
ARBTT

93,733
(29,707)
(29,39)
70,316

45,580



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAREITHE (&)

(Continued)
() EFBUREE (&)

(e) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BRI RS R & BRI 165 [ E

(%)
(iii) Impact on the financial result and (iii) HEXKEUBEERIRERE
cash flows of the Group (Continued) HReE(Z)

2019 2018
—E-nE —T-N\F
Estimated
amounts
related to  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts operating  amounts for to amounts
reported  leases as if 2019 as if reported for
under under IAS 17 under 2018 under
IFRS 16  (notes 1 & 2) 1AS 17 IAS 17
REARBER
EatER
grgz maRsEe BLos Ll
REERE  HEEHE ERE ] &R
MBREERN  HHEOET Al Al E1TRERZ
F16EH2 28 C—E-AE PRI
&8 (ME1R2) RELH £
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETR BNS SR
Line items in the consolidated ~ RiRAEMRR R & %R
statement of cash flows for (7
the year ended 31 December BE-B-h&
2019 impacted by the +ZA=+-HLEEE
adoption of IFRS 16: MEARLRERER:
Cash generated from operations &% EZ8FEREE 159,414 159,105 162,157
Interest paid BERFHE (12,741) (12,710) (18,011)
Net cash generated from CEETBHMEHETE
operating activities 124,850 124,572 130,283
Capital element of lease rentals paid = EREHERKH (278) - =
Net cash used in financing HEEHMAR&TE
activities (142,502) (142,224) (115,993)

MHEIS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE

n‘lT\

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(f)

(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(iii) Impact on the financial result and
cash flows of the Group (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts
of the cash flows in 2019 that relate to
leases which would have been classified as
operating leases, if IAS 17 had still applied in
2019. This estimate assumes that there were
no differences between rentals and cash
flows and that all of the new leases entered
into in 2019 would have been classified as
operating leases under IAS 17, if IAS 17 had
still applied in 2019. Any potential net tax
effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows
are reclassified from financing activities to
operating activities in order to compute
hypothetical amounts of net cash generated
from operating activities and net cash used in
financing activities as if IAS 17 still applied.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED % 22
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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() MBABIRFEERER (F)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —E-NFEERE

RMEARZREBZHIRIGER
EHAZAMBHRE BEEEHIK
LERLE -RRGEMBHRRE &
BARRHEZER RHERER
E UREEARRHERZIELRN
ERARER BN EHEH - RENRA
ARAERZEENARERBERNE
ARERWEWBERTT G HEE
[RRYEHIREZ R BN -

RS EY IR B E R KM
BEANNMBARMNKE EAXAE
B ERARE R A ASTTHE
FHRABAEBEBEARZENE
TRHEAEERNEDAEANR
T-REBREHAMHME  AEEA
EELAR TP ESRIA RS PIE
MEBRE A #AFEEMNLLPIEE
FEFER M RS

Ay




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE

n‘lT\

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

1L A=

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %‘f_’\
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(1)(ii)).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R

EREFBER (&)
() MBABIRFEERERS (F

BB A R IR B 1R Ak AN 0 B R E
EEEAQRAANTEMRIRARE
( BB EE2() (i) ) ©

(g) Goodwill () BE

Goodwill represents the excess of EESEC

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the () FEERENEEEATE:
consideration transferred, the amount WEE S E A ERERN S
of any non-controlling interest in the BEANEBERTAFEKES
acquiree and the fair value of the REQFE 2L B
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s (i) RUWEEBFTEWRES THE
identifiable assets and liabilities MEERBERAFTFENE
measured as at the acquisition date. o

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess WNES AR (SRR QlzE

is recognised immediately in profit or loss as HHRRERERAZBURE 2K

a gain on a bargain purchase. o

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated BRI 2R EEEY R -

impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a EGettEEmESEEEEA

business combination is allocated to each BBRAEHNHRKZEFNNSRS

cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of EEBEA ([(ReELEM(])HRE

CGU, that is expected to benefit from the EEBEMNAR T FETRER

synergies of the combination and is tested B CRBEE20)i) ) °

annually for impairment (see note 2(l)(ii)).
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e B R AR MY AT

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

114

(i)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-
line basis method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless
it is reasonably certain that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.

The estimated useful lives of significant
items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years

Major generator 25 — 30 years
equipment

Other machineries 5 — 32 years

Motor vehicles, furniture, 5 — 10 years
fixtures, equipment

and others

Right-of use assets Depreciated
including land use over the
rights shorter of the

unexpired
lease term or
the estimated
useful lives of
the assets

Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

1)

1LAE]

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 represent the cost of
land use rights paid to PRC government
authorities. Lease prepayments are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the respective periods
of the rights.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16
at 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. The land use rights
were reclassified from lease prepayments
into right-of-use assets (see note 2(k)) since
1 January 2019.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(l)

(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Pollutant emission right 5 years
Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee

(A) Policy applicable from 1
January 2019

Where the contract contains
lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group
has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components
as a single lease component for all
leases.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1

January 2019 (Continueqd)

At the lease commencement date,
the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group
are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1

January 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index
or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

2
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1

January 2019 (Continueqd)

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any
initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 2(h)
and 2(1)(ii)).

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1

January 2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured
when there is a change in
future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-
use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property
in ‘property, plant and equipment’
and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

12

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED % 22

(i) As a lessee (Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1

January 2019

In the comparative period, as a
lessee the Group classified leases
as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the
Group were classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group had the use
of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under
the leases were charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were
charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they
were incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets
(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables);

Other financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

124

U]

Credit losses and impairment of

assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and
trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of

1L2(E]

assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when the
financial asset is 60 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

S existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

2

EREEEEX (#)

U]

EEBEREERE ()

(i)

BT RZIEEEHEE (&)

EEEBEEEN (&)

BARERIANME FE
2 B 7 2 AT N0 RY (i TR R B
EEGHREEET - T
RIZAREELET RMIA
Al ARMNEERRSE (1
BN K= B R &
ToMe

BHEEERNSHE A HE
TEMAEURRERTAR
MR ARNEER R E
B-RHMEEEREENER
N BE TR SR ER
HAER -ANKERAE TR
THEERRERDIEE I
BBBEREREERTEE
HAE RS-



2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(u) is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R

BEREETHBER (£)
) EEBEREEREZ)
() 2HMIRZIEEEHE(E)
EEEREEEMN (&)
STEFBMAEE

AR IR MY S 2(u) BE BB O I 2 A
DIREEBEE 2 MR ER
B BRIEMEELRREER
BAE - FELRERT AMEEKA
DRIR S B A E 2 B KA
(B 48 B D B R0 A5 1R 1 ) &
o

RERESAH AEEFHEE
MEERALBREERE-S
AR ZREHTHEER
AARREEREBTNEEN
EHE eREEHRGEER
o

=23



'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e B R AR MY AT

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
e EERRMEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

1L e

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current

assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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e EERRMEE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

EREFEEX (#)

EEBEREERE (Z)
(i) RGHFnxBHEEHRE (%)
- FRIETKEEEHE

BEMNAIKRESEAER
SRR B A B (B
BzBOREE R
= R EER - fAaT KRR
ERETIIRBERMRIRE T
SHERREEENEE
5 E LB O AT Al O A5 AT B
REPMEHBE - HE
EMELERESRARNB L
TREBUL N B EEPTE
EWMRERA - AITLEE
VEEARESRANRN
BEMAMN (AReELSE
fi7) EEE AT Ol 2 78




'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

e B R AR MY AT

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

134

U]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EERRMEE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial

year.
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% i 3R MY 5%

e

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories include materials for repairs and
maintenance and spare parts, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and
are charged to operating expenses when
used, or capitalised to property, plant and
equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of
inventories includes costs of purchase and
transportation costs. Provision for inventory
obsolescence is determined by the excess of
cost over net realisable value.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the
Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses (see note 2(l)(i)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(1)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Trade and
other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

1L E]=]

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pay fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for the statutory defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when they are
due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

()

(ii)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

140

Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions,
all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise
from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

142

Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are
met:

= in the case of current tax assets
and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

2
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®)

Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets
and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period
in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

(u)

144

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Revenue from sales of electricity

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission
of electric power to the power grid
companies, as determined based
on the volume of electric power
transmitted and the applicable fixed
tariff rates agreed with the respective
electric power grid companies
periodically.

(ii) Capacity tariff revenue
Capacity tariff revenue is recognised on
a time-apportioned basis by reference
to the installed production capacity of
individual power plants and the relevant
capacity tariff rates.

(iii) Revenue from sales of heat

Revenue from sales of heat is
recognised upon the transmission of
heat to the third party customers, as
determined based on the volume of
heat transmitted and the applicable
unit price agreed with the respective
customers periodically.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

v)

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset (see note 2(l)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are initially recognised as
deferred income at fair value and then
recognised in profit or loss as other
income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

148

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Dividends

(x)

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties

(@)

(o)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(0

(ii)

(i)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(0

(i

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viil The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

A number of the Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.
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DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan
approximate their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank
loans with similar terms and maturity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE

n‘lT\

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

154

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue and revenue from
sales of heat.

- Volume tariff revenue represents
the sale of electricity to power grid
companies.

- Capacity tariff revenue represents
a subsidy income from power grid
companies, following a reduction in
the annual planned power generation
volume of the Group’s power plants for
supply to the power grid companies
and changes in the electricity tariff
policies applicable to the Group
since 2015, pursuant to the “Notice
Regarding the Trial Implementation
of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power
Generating Units in Zhejiang Province”
issued by Zhejiang Provincial Price
Bureau in June 2015.

- Revenue from sales of heat represents
the sale of heat to corporate entities.

Volume tariff revenue and revenue from sales
of heat are recognised upon the transfer of
products.

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised based

on the installed capacity and capacity tariff
on a monthly basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

()

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers by major
products is as follows:

e B AR MY RE

WK o EmE (&

(a) Wik (#&
(i) WzHE
RIEZEMMIBEHNEFEOW
wmUR

2019 2018
i VR — T\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETxT PN B
Revenue from contracts with  BIREI¥5R & %A
customers within the scope S5 HEE A
of IFRS 15 EFEaHWE
Disaggregated by major products: 1% = Z & fn 7 48
Electricity: BN
Volume tariff revenue BE=2BBWA 45,445 42,568
Capacity tariff revenue AEBEBWA 218,024 213,158
263,469 255,726
Heat: A
Revenue from sales of heat HER WA 28,740 25,899
292,209 281,625

The Group’s customer base is
concentrated and includes only one
customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. In 2019, volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue from this
customer (including its subsidiaries)
amounted to RMB263,469,000
(2018: RMB255,726,000). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising
from this customer are set out in note
24(a).

AEENEFPEREY X5
HEHBAEEKRZ10%MEFF
AE—%&-RN_EBE—HhE X
BEZEF(BEENBAR)
NEEEBWANRREESR
WA E B A R #263,469,000
(=2 —NF: AR
255,726,00070) - BRZ R E
ENEFEERROFBIHR
B 7E24(a) °
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4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

For identification purpose only

12 (37

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have
identified four operating segments, which are
the four power plants, namely:

° Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (known as “Amber
(Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co.,
Ltd.*” before 19 June 2019);

o Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (known as “Zhejiang
Amber Deneng Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd.*” before 13 May
2019);

° Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (known as “Zhejiang
Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd.*” before 17 May
2019); and

o Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (known as “Hangzhou
Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd.*” before 17 May
2019).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these four operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type of class of customers and the
regulatory environment. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from
the volume tariff revenue, capacity tariff
revenue and revenue from sales of heat
in the PRC, and the principal non-current
assets employed by the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segments has been provided
for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 KBRFEAER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRELATEF 5B, (FFA)ATIEB %
(crediting): EB
(a) Net finance costs (a) AR ARER
2019 2018
t-Iob/R- I — T\ &
(Note)
(PR3E)

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS

Interest income FEMA (446) (811)
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE Y 25 5 BE (7) -
Finance income BT N (453) (311)
Interest on interest-bearing FFEEBERREERAE
borrowings and shareholder’s loan 29,682
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE =
Total interest expense recognised REZERHFE
in profit or loss il 458 29,682
Bank charges RITE A 25
Finance expenses BBHAX 29,707
Net finance costs BF TS K 2N 5 BE 29,396
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January WeE: AEEER_TE—NF-—A—BERALK
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. BETRENEEREARRITBREE
Under this approach, comparative information is not AlZE16% - IRIBRU 5% LBERTFE
restated. See note 2(e). 5o B HizE2(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

Contribution to defined contribution & 58 F st 21 &9 ¢ 3¢

plans

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 BRBEAER (&)
(b) Personnel costs b) B IEEZF
2019 2018
—T-AF EEEaaiNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT PN S
Wages, salaries and other benefits e IERHMER 26,773 27,253

2,130 2,161

28,903 29,414

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described
above.

R E B 2 B B IR AR A SR AR
T REMBEERARESRE  NEEHA
FEHERF - AKERZ LR FRE
XA AR E FK 0 T & AR P
FRAFFERRSHEBNNREE
T:’E B LAt sRsh - REE Y E SR

W&ET‘@ BRKERAA R E

%‘#
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'NOTES TO THE CON
B 7% ¥R R M9 5T

e

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continueq)

(b) Personnel costs (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

5)

SOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEM

BR

BEA ()

(b) EIRAE (&)

RE B TR IR 08 B M A TE 2 5T B R
B RAEEREERANEER
BRUYTERETRFMERAER R
BRI E ([smEERT &) - H50%
BEEAFHES AN LFEL  XRR
BaEetEEIAXNKERR
k- BEEHEMNEERBLE
BESRE EAKEEEDRE
BoAKENEIHRRITARE
THERTHRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 BRBAEIER (&
Other items (c) HMIEH

(c)

2019 2018
—E-hE PeEiNs
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR PN S

Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE X
plant and equipment REEEFE 232
Depreciation charge (note 11) wERZ (MEE11)
- Owned property, plant and —BEWE KFE
equipment Bgi] 55,826
— Right-of-use assets —FEREEE
— land use rights* — b R A S
- Right-of-use assets —EAEEE
— other properties* —Hm -
Amortisation s
— Lease prepayments (note 12) —JEfHEe (FiE12) 1,337
- Intangible assets (note 13) —EmEEE (H:F13) 607
Expense relating to short-term leases B FIHHAIHN T — N F
and other leases with remaining +=—A=+—H3%
lease term ended on or before ZAEHRZEHEE
31 December 2019 REMEER @RI -
Total minimum lease payments for ?Eﬁﬁﬂﬁf Rt R
leases previously classified as BT B AKERE
operating leases under IAS 17* MEE s HEEE
DES:L-N 1,122
Auditor’s remuneration % ELAT B 2
— audit services —Z RS 1,180

* The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at
1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated.
See note 2(e).

* AEBER=Z—NF—A—BEXALE
AT BB OBA B X FE R B BR B 7% RS AE R
%165@%%%%)]#?@ LAWERR 52 AR R

BEEertEEI7TR s BEAKCEREN
fﬂ WEREEE - R=T—hF—A—
BB RERERELER NEBIEAK
TAABRRBEAREENE  MIEREE
AMBERRARRNEEREERABRERRL
BHEREENASHAT RBUHIT A
LB E R FE5| - RHiE2(e) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOL DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gl e

n‘/T\

6 OTHER INCOME

Government grants

Government grants represent unconditional

6 HMWA
2019 2018
=t BV — T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT PN B
K A 485 B 6,611 5,979
B EEE T - NLF+-A

government grants of RMB6,247,000 (2018:
RMB5,617,000) awarded to the Group and the
amortisation of deferred government grants of
RMB364,000 during the year ended 31 December

ST HLEFERTFAEENEKER
FT % BE A R #6,247,000C (ZF— N\
F: AR#ES5,617,0007T) & # 85 1F i B
T 48 BE A R #364,0007T (ZZF— )\ F:

2019 (2018: RMB362,000).

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Income tax in the consolidated

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

AR #362,0007T) °

REBERANMER

(a) HFEHEBRAMEBIE:

statement of profit or loss represents:

Current tax

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Over-provision in respect of
prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Total income tax expense in the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss

2019 2018
b bR T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTx PN -5
BpEAF I
PR ERSH 18,147
NEFEBERE
(417)
17,730
EERIE
TR EENESREE
7,006
IREERRNETER
EEEE
24,736

M=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman lIslands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as
these subsidiaries did not have any
assessable profits subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

The provision for PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on the respective
Corporate Income Tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in the PRC
as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are subject to the unified tax
rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty or arrangement, for
dividend distributions out of the PRC
from earnings accumulated from 1
January 2008. Undistributed earnings
generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax.
As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB33,209,000 (2018:
RMB29,651,000) have been recognised
in connection with the withholding
tax that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries.
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘l-_r\
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBRERANWREH (&
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) BWERBEFENHIEMATHEET
and accounting profit at applicable tax aHitk FI T ER -
rate:

1684

Gl e

2019
—®-n%
RMB’000
AR%F T

Profit before taxation B 150 A& A 83,782
Notional tax on profit before taxation, Bk Bl % F 8 % & F1 1B 1%
calculated at the rates applicable to 18 78 B X #9 % ) &

profits in the countries concerned METE 25,135
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ 8] 171 5 5 KT 765 52 & 259
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERH A AHIEEHE

recognised WG E (2
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised = &) M iﬂ&irﬂiﬁﬁi\

temporary differences utilised EREEANEEE (2,502)
Recognition of previously unrecognised & :2 5t Al & #& 52 HY

deductible temporary differences AEMEREER (969)
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBEERE (48)
Withholding tax on profits retained by /1 B fff & 2 &) 1R 88 & | &9

PRC subsidiaries TR 7,058

Actual tax expense EBREHIERXS 28,931

2018
— N\
RMB’000
ARBTT

70,316

21,379
250



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Directors’
fee
e
RMB’000
ARETT
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Wei Junyong mEBLE
Mr. Gu Genyong BRAEE
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Li Jinquan FEREHE
(resigned on 29 July 2019) (RZT-N%E
tAZTAREE)
Mr. Zhang Lianghua RRELL
(resigned on 29 July 2019) (R=F-h%F

tAZThEEE)

Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES
Mr. Tse Chi Man AEEE
Mr. Yao Xianguo hEBEE
Mr. Yu Wayne W. aEELE

e B AR MY RE

EEME

BIEEB D AIED$383(1)E R AT (#
BEEMNZER) RO FEBEENES
e T :

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-B-AE+-A=+-HLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BHR
BEYfG BERd BRSEER szt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETR ARETR ARETR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

8 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-N\E+-A=t-BLLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
5¢ 2ER
2k ENF &= ML RINEEIRR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000
ARETT ARETn AREBTr ARETT ARETR
Executive directors BiTEE
Mr. Wei Junyong RYBERE - - - - -
Mr. Gu Genyong BBk LA - 442 424 42 908
Non-executive directors FHTESE
Mr. Li Jinquan TEREHE - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Lianghua RRERE - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIEHITEE
Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXLE 169 - - - 169
Mr. Yao Xianguo PhEBI L& 169 - - - 169
Mr. Yu Wayne W. aRELE 169 - - - 169
507 442 424 42 1,415
No emoluments were paid by the Group during FRN - AEESERNESHBNERMNE

the year to directors in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join. The director’s emolument for
Mr. Wei Junyong for the year ended 31 December
2019 was borne by Puxing Energy, who has
waived its right to seek reimbursement from the
Group.

LSS PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED ?s"f_J\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

1,812

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EEFAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest rEEREGEmHFALHR —R(ZF
emoluments, one (2018: one) is the director —NEFE:—RB)RESF HMMeBERNW
whose emolument is disclosed in note 8. The A8 HEMmWA (ZE—N\F:UH) AL
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the MM @EEIT
other four (2018: four) individuals are as follows:
2019
—E-h=E
RMB’000
ARBTR
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE FekHEMmEH 1,870
Contributions to defined contribution plan & %8 it Z &t 214 3% 124

1,994

The emoluments of the four (2018: four)
individuals with the highest emoluments are within

the following bands:

100

1,912

mE(ZTE-N\F:OR)RSHFALH

e FIATAER

HK$0 - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000

2019
—E-hE
Number of
individuals
AE
£ 7% 7L — 1,000,000/ 7T
1,000,001% 7T
—1,500,000/% 7T

No emoluments were paid by the Group during
the year to the five highest paid employees in
connection with their retirement from employment

with the Group, or inducement to join.
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB54,854,000 (2018: RMB45,580,000)
and the weighted average of 458,600,000
(2018: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
as there were no dilutive potential shares
during both years.
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10 BRERF

(a)

(b)

BREXRT
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BREZIRRAREHEEIARE
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B N1 S 15 £7458,600,0000% ( — =
— )\ : 458,600,0000% ) 51 & -
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

11 WE - BERKRE

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BRE{EZ¥HER
Motor
vehicles, Right-
furniture, of-use
Buildings Major fixtures, Assets
and generator Other  equipment carried at  Assets under
plants  equipment  machineries  and others cost  construction Total
RERR
IEHE RE-RBR  BAXTIRY
BTRER Bl e i ERELE HEREE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETLE  ARETR ARETr AREfr ARETn ARETR  ARETR
Cost: BE:
At1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-F-R 274,564 1,268,991 179,255 16,691 - 3,529 1,733,030
Additions AE 42 - 3,664 310 - 6,853 10,869
Transfer from assets under BRETREE
construction 162 4,460 2,558 28 - (7,208) -
Disposals RE (20) (1,486) (1,438) (1,706) - - (4,650)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=+-H 274748 1261965 184,039 15,323 - 3174 1,739,049
Impact on initial application of & % fE FAEIBA &1 5 & B
IFRS 16 (Note) F16%H% 2 (M) - - - - 45,240 - 45,240
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-F-A 214,148 1,261,965 184,039 3,174 1,784,489
Additions AE 4 - 17 8,245 10,931
Transfer from assets under BREAREE
construction - 815 7,187 (8,002) -
Disposals RE (491) - (3,280) - (4,580)
At 31 December 2019 RIF-NETZAZT- 274,261 1,262,780 187,963 3MT 1,790,840

Accumulated depreciation and B3t &R EEE:
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2018 R-Z-NE-A-A 78219 (3940%0)
Charge for the year FRER (7,599) (42,012)
Written back on disposals RERD 19 931
Reclassfication EfiAR - (10,669)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+Zf=+-H

and 1 January 2019 R=E-n5-R-R (85,798) (445,780)
Charge for the year EmER (7,640) (40,852)
Written back on disposals RERR 1 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H (93,267) (486,632)
Net book value: REsE:
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1-H 180,094 776,148
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\ETZA=T-H 188,080 816,185

(137,749)
5,279)
902
10,669

(131,457)
(5,997)
2,559

(134,895)

53,068

52,582

(15,759) = - [B558)
(936) S - (55,826

1,687 S = 3,539

(15,00) - - (678,049
(1,673) (1,686) (57,848)
8 - 3,448

(15,969) (1,686) (732,443)

44,356 1,058,397

315 2 3174 1,061,206

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17.
See note 2(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11
(Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, no property, plant
and equipment were pledged as collateral for
bank loans (31 December 2018: Nil).

(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is

7]

(a)

(b)

X -BMENRRKR®E (8)
IREEZHR (&)

RZZE—-AFE+-A=+—8"#
mYIE BERREDERARTT
ERMERR(ZE—N\E+=A
=t—H:E)-

EREEE

EREEENREFELEREE
BRIDHT

as follows:
At 31 At 1
December January
2019 2019
»®
—E-hE i
T H ik
=+-—8 —A—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(= ARS Tt PN
Leasehold HE
Land held for own use, carried  #{EE A i
at depreciated cost RITERAT R () 44,815
Other properties leased for HEFBAMWEMD
own use, carried at VI RITE R
depreciated cost 7| B (ii) 425
45,240

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %‘f_’\




(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BRENRSKRE (&)
(Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as
follows:

(b) fERERE (&)

RESPREIOEERBERAYIER
Sax g UNNE

2019 2018
- - T \F
(Note)
(PH=E)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
{4 ARBTR AREFTT
Depreciation charge of RIEAEERRFIRE
right-of-use assets by class of ERREERERX:
underlying asset:
Leasehold land held for own use FEaRAMEE LT () -
Other properties leased HEEEBANEMYE
for own use (i) -
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) FAE&EF B (Ki5E5(a)) -
Expense relating to short-term HFHERAR T —NEF
leases and other leases with +TZRA=+—H%
remaining lease term ended on AR 2 RERE K
or before 31 December 2019 HinHERMMAX -
Total minimum lease payments for & AR 15 BB & 5+ & 8
leases previously classified as BT ARKERE
operating leases under IAS 17 Bz HEHE
(RE&:E 1,122
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the e : AEBERZT—NF—A—BERABALE
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the FT B0 B WA B R E BB B A R 5 2E R
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise F165R I ARV AR - AR ST TR I
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were BEREtERF1ITROBACEAAERN
previously classified as operating leases under IAS HENEREEE - R_T—NF—A—
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at AVBERERAREER  ~NEEBERK
1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required TAANBERFEAREENE  MIERIKRE
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, AMBRRASRRNEEREERABRERE
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental EHEMEANHSRAZ RBELTTE
expenses incurred under operating leases on a LLEE R T ES - R 5E2(e)
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.
See note 2(e).
S
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use
assets were RMB802,000. This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and
the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in notes 16(c) and 20, respectively.

()

(i)

Leasehold land held for own use

The Group holds several leasehold
lands, which lump sum payments were
paid to PRC government authorities,
with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted. It carried at depreciated
cost and depreciation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the respective periods of the land
use rights.

Other properties leased for own
use

The Group has obtained the right to use
other properties as its office buildings
and staff dormitory through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 3 to 5 years. Lease
payments are usually increased every 3
years to reflect market rentals.

11
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M- BERRE (&)

(b) fEREEE (&)
RERN NEEREEER/RARE
802,000 %L MEIBEHHEE
HBERTNNEXNEERNBEENKE
e °

HEMRRHABEREEREN
DM 2 FH B0 R E IR H
16(c) }20 °

(i) FEEBRHHEELHE
RER B+ A R A P BB AR
FISN—RENROEE L
b - 35 B T B B0 E 504 -
% F T IR YT E RN G AR R A
Bt ERENERFEHN
EREERBRERE -

(i) FHEEERBHIR MY

AEBBEBHEHERGER
HEESMABTRET
BEESHNEN ZEHEREY
SHBPR=ZZRF - HENRK
—RREB=F LA —RARKB
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12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

12 A%

RMB’000
ARBF T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2018 R—ZZE—N\FE—H—H 59,020
Additions NE =
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H 59,020
Accumulated amortisation: FetHEe:
At 1 January 2018 —=—\F—HA—H (12,868)
Charge for the year FANEHA (1,337)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H (14,205)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE—N\F+=-_A=+—H 44,815
Reclassified to right-of-use assets BRSO ECREEE
(see note 11(b)) (RKFE11(0)) (44,815)

At 1 January 2019 and
31 December 2019

RZE-—NF—A—BXK
—E-hFE+-A=+—8H

()  Lease prepayments represent cost of land
use rights in respect of lands located in the
PRC with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted.

(i) As at 31 December 2018, no land use rights

() TEMNESERTDEHEEAI0EL0F
Ry AR B+ b &) £+ Hb {5 A AN ©

i) RZTE-—NE+ZA=+—H80"#

were pledged. B AR R
: : 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —ZE— WEFEHE 173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 |BEEE
Pollutant
emission
rights
HeiSHE
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H =
Additions NE 2,505
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE—-—NFE+_A=+—H
and 1 January 2019 rE=—E—-n&FE—H—H
Additions NE
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—NAF+=-_A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation: FaTHEes:
At 1 January 2018 S —NF—H—H =
Charge for the year FRNEH (607)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+=—A=+—H
and 1 January 2019 rF—E—hF—A—H (607)
Charge for the year FRNEH (607)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H (1,214)
Net book value: AREFE:
At 31 December 2019 A—E—-NF+=—A=+—H
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE—-—NFE+_A=+—H 1,898
The amortisation charge of RMB607,000 for the FAEHEFZ AR®607,0007T 2 51 ALR
year is included in “depreciation and amortisation” EERRAN [TEREE P -

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

14 RHBRABMNIKRE

TREFBETEXE

BENKHBARINFE-

AEMESR
B =B AN

P B0 J 5l A5 BB -

Percentage of
Place and date of eq"'ttg:g;'l:":t:xe to Issued and
establishment/ fully paid-up/
incorporation FATBEREE Y registered capital
Name of company 3L/ s A B Direct Indirect ERTRER/ Principal activity
A5 &R REH Ef & HMER TEER
Puxing Tian (HK) Limited (formerly Hong Kong 100% - HK$193,663,941/ Investment holding
known as “Amber Bluesky (HK) 26 June 2008 Not applicable
Limited”) (*Puxing Tian")
BEX(ER)BRAH Bk 193,663,04187,/ RARRK
(BIT [RHEX (FR)BRAA]) ZETNE TER
(TE2X]) ~AZtRA
Puxing Xing (HK) Limited (formerly Hong Kong 100% - HK$98,844,399/ Investment holding
known as “Amber Jingxing (HK) 26 June 2008 Not applicable
Limited”) (*Puxing Xing")
LER(E8)ARAH B 98,844,399 7T,/ AR
(B8 [RARE(FB)BRAA) ZET)\¥ TER
([Z2&]) ~AZtRA
Puxing Neng (HK) Limited (formerly Hong Kong 100% - HK$75,624,511/ Investment holding
known as “Amber Deneng (HK) 26 June 2008 Not applicable
Limited”) (“Puxing Neng’)
BEH (BR)ERAA Bk 75,624 51187,/ RARRK
(B8 [Ronee (B8) BRAR) ZET)\E TER
([£28]) ~AZtRA
Puxing Ji (HK) Limited (formerly known Hong Kong 100% - HK$1/ Investment holding
as “‘Amber Anji (HK) Limited”) 2 September 2008 Not applicable
(‘Puxing Ji")
Ei("i?rﬁ)ﬁlﬁ’ A B 131/ REZR
(B8 [RARE (BB)BRAA) 2T\ TER
([£2%)) NAZR
Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas The PRC - 100% US$17,171,400/ Power generation
Power Co., Ltd.* (note 1) 15 December 2004 US$17,171,400
FIEEERAREEARAT HE 17,171 40057,/ %5
(Ht3E1) Uik 171714005 T
TZA+aA
& For identification purpose only
EXEE A
it T -NFEFEERE A,
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 RHBRABMNIKRE (£)

(Continued)
Percentage of
Place and date of eq"'ttgeag;:":t:xe to Issued and
establishment/ fully paid-up/
incorporation FATAREREE Y registered capital
Name of company 3L/ G Direct Indirect ERTRER/ Principal activity
A5EH REH Ef Gk #MEF TEER
Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas The PRC = 100% US$16,660,000/ Power generation
Power Co., Ltd." (note 1) 6 January 2005 1US$16,660,000
MILERRRREBARAA hE 16,660,000% 7,/ BE
(H5E1) “ZZRE-ARA 16,660,000% T
Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas The PRC = 100% US$18,408,710/ Power generation
Power Co., Ltd.” (note 2) 18 August 2004 US$18,408,710
MILEREAREEERAA P E 18,408,710% 70,/ BT
(HzH2) ZEZRENATNE 18,408, 710X T
Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal The PRC = 100% US$46,011,933/ Power generation and
Power Co., Ltd." (note 1) 25 February 2011 US$46,011,933 heat supply
LE(RE)MBREBRAA HE 46,011,933% 1/ BERMR
(1) —F2--%-f=t+%A 46,011,933%
Wenling Juneng Wind Power The PRC = 68% RMB4,000,000/ Power generation
Generation Co., Ltd." (note 3) 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 (under design and
planning stage)
RERRENEEERAA (M) EF AR 4,000,000,/ g
“Z-MELA=H AR%50,000,0007T (ERRABBE)
Note 1:  Wholly foreign-owned enterprise established under the BEE1 . REBEPEEERUNIINEBEEEREELA
PRC law with limited liability
Note 2:  Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise established e . REBEPEEERIOTINEGEERETEAA
under the PRC law with limited liability
Note 3:  Limited liability company established under the PRC law EES :  RBEPBEEKINBRETAA

For identification purpose only

12 (37
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BWEZ R HMRIE

2019 2018

=t BV — T \F
RMB’000 ERIY/=K0loo
ARBTE NS

Trade receivables FEWE 5 FIE 41,047 29,888
Prepayments AT BB 1,195 1,567
Other receivables H 4th B U SR IE 1,884 1,340
44,126 32,795
All of the trade and other receivables are expected FTERWE S R HEMKIBBHATIN—F
to be recovered within one year. e
At 31 December 2019, aging analysis of trade RZE—-NF+ZA=+—8 A5£EBE
receivables of the Group based on the invoice WE ZRIBREZBHMENKRER DT
date is as follows: T

2019 2018
—2-nx RN
RMB’000 RMB’000
LTSN \RETT

Within 1 month —@AA 41,047 29,888
All of the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 RZE-—NAF+ZA=+—HB XKEM
December 2019 were fully settled up to the date ERWEZIFEREEZZNHRET
of the issuance of these financial statements. HHHEREES-

SN T Sy ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =% — h7F F [Z i &5 HZ7




NOTES TO THE CONSOL DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR MY AT

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

16 BERBSSEYUREMEB SR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION a¥
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERREFEB/YEHE:
2019 2018
—T-hE Pt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT PN S
Cash and cash equivalents in KRG BRI ER &
the consolidated statement of KEBRERERNES K
financial position and ReEEY
consolidated statement of
cash flows 74,860
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) RIS FENELEESBHIER

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future

TREIIMERDFELARER
BeE2BHFB BRERENMIFRSE
B -MERDELICABERS
ﬁ%aﬁ%)ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬂﬁ/\$ﬁ =

EREREXNDBEARELDE

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EZE@%%;E’JEL
consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.
Interesting-
bearing Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings loan liabilities Total
FEEE BREER HEEE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
(note 18) (note 17) (note 20)
(KizE18) (B5E17) (F7%20)
At 31 December 2018  RZF—-N\&
+ZB=+-H 467,205 126,227 - 593,432
Impact on initial application & X f& & l["%ﬁﬁ%iﬁi
of IFRS 16 (Note) ERFE1GRMTE
(PiaE) - - 425 425
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&—A—A 467,205 126,227 425 593,857

178 PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED



16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising

from financing activities (Continued)

Changes from financing FZEHE&REZEH:
cash flows:

Capital element of lease ~ BN HEHESMER
rentals paid 547

Proceeds from new loans ~ $TEF 2 F1S A

Repayment of loans BEER

Total changes from financing A€ R & H € 2

cash flows SEAE

Other adjustments: HiiR%:

Exchange adjustments BN A%

Increase in lease liabilities FREFILHAE
from entering into new 2B R B A3
leases, interest charge mgmnEEs &

and interest payment
during the year

as loan FBKE
At 31 December 2019 RZB-1E
+-A=+-H

16

Interesting-
bearing
borrowings
itEMEE
RMB’000

ARETRT
(note 18)
(BFEE18)

65,000
(180,500)

(115,500)

353,931

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective method and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. See note
2(e).

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

BeERBRTLZEYUAREMBRESR
a8 ()

(b) MEFHELBRER(F)

Lease
liabilities
HEAR
RMB’000
ARETR
(note 20)
(HiEE20)

Shareholder’s
loan

BRER
RMB’000
ARETR
(note 17)
(BEE17)

Total

@zt
RMB’000
ARETR

(278)
65,000
(180,500)

(115,778)

135,075 489,835

ME: AKEER-_Z2-NAF-A-—HKAKL
& RT BB W5 B R e P B R B 7 o o
B 1657 W A B A ER - AREREATAR
BRERGFERNE TR EAKEEE
MBEENHESE - RHFE2(e) -

—ENFEERE W53



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR EE

n‘lT\

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities (Continued)

S E)

16 RERBREEBYUREMBRER

a8 (#)

(b) MEFHELBREK(F)

Interesting-
bearing Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings loan liabilities Total
FEEE BRRER HERE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
(note 18) (note 17) (note 20)
(HzE18) (P &E17) (P &+20)
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\E-f—-H 565,224 114,782 - 680,006
Changes from financing BER&HEZEE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new loans T8 2 G 7B 57,000 = = 57,000
Repayment of loans EBRER (161,500) S S (161,500)
Total changes from financing B € R & R € 2
cash flows 2EeE (104,500) = = (104,500)
Exchange adjustments B i 3% 6,481 5,533 - 12,014
Interest charge EFTERBERN
reclassified as loan FSkE - 5,912 = 5,912
At 31 December 2018 ~ MZF—N\F
+=ZA=+-H 467,205 126,227 - 593,432

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & £2




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 REeRBELEEYUREMEBESR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows for leases comprise

a8 (#)

HEZHSRHEE
RERHABARSRERNLE
mF:

the following:
2019 2018
—E-nE LN
(Note)
(M$5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR PN W
Within operating cash flows FFAKERERE 563 1,154
Within financing cash flows AARBERERE 278 -

841 1,154

Note: The adoption of IFRS 16 introduces a change in
classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid
on leases. The comparative amounts have not been
restated.

These amounts relate to the following:

MisE: RABRMBRELENEI6RSIAETT
ENHERSNRERDEED - LBE
BATED -

ZEBELTIEA G

2019 2018

b P T /\F
GUEGE  RMB'000
ARE TR NS

Lease rentals paid BEAER:

841 1,154

e o ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =% — hu7F F [Z i &5 181




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘lT\

17

S

Gl e

SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN

17 RRERK

A& H
FEASFI B

Principal amount
Interest payable

2019 2018

i clob -l — T — )\ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS0
123,004 120,315
12,071 5,912
135,075 126,227

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding
principal amount of shareholder’s loan due to
Puxing International Limited (formerly known
as “Amber International Investment Co., Ltd.”)
(“Puxing International”) was HK$137,315,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB123,004,000)
(31 December 2018: HK$137,315,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB120,315,000)), bearing
interest at 4.9% per annum. The outstanding
principal amount and related accrued interest
were repayable on 30 December 2022.

RZEBE-NFE+_A=+—H EfRXE
EBEBREARAR (A1 [RHBERKER
RARL) ([E2BEE])BBREREFRKR

B8R4 % 5137,315,000% 7T (HHER
4 A R#123,004,0007T) (ZEBE—N\FE
+ - A =+—H8:137,315,000/ 7t (8
ERHARY120,315,0007T) ) » IREF|
KA9%FT B - REEAS BRI ERT
MEEAR-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=t+HEE-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Current

Unsecured loans from related parties (i)

Current portion of non-current
unsecured bank loans guaranteed
by a related party (ii)

Current portion of non-current
unsecured loans from a
related party (iii)

BN
EA R B E T ')
FEBNHA e B 7 JE AR Y
EEIMRITERD

B HAZ6 5 (ii)

FERN IR N R E )

BIVER & 2 (iif)

Non-current

Unsecured bank loans guaranteed
by a related party (ii)

Unsecured loans from a
related party (iii)

FEEH
FH B4 77 FE AR O SR 3R

R 17 B i)

4 3K 1 8 8 5 B 3Gl

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —E-NFEERE

2019
—F-AE

RMB’000
ARETFR

154,431

79,000

70,000

303,431

40,500

10,000

50,500

353,931

e B AR MY RE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

35,000

77,500

HE3
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18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(i)

184

Unsecured loans from related parties
as at 31 December 2019 represented
unsecured loan from Puxing Energy
of USD19,700,000 (equivalent to
RMB137,431,000) (2018:Current portion
of non-current unsecured loans from a
related party: USD19,700,000 (equivalent
to RMB135,205,000)) and unsecured loan
from Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang
Finance”) of RMB17,000,000 (2018:
RMB35,000,000) respectively.

The unsecured loan from Puxing Energy of
USD19,700,000 borne an interest rate of
4.45% per annum (2018: 4.45% per annum).
The loan was renewed in 2019 and was
repayable on 20 September 2020.

The unsecured loan from Wanxiang Finance
of RMB17,000,000 borne an interest rate of
4.35% per annum (2018: 4.35%-4.48% per
annum) and was repayable on 26 August
2020.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & £2

18

STEEE (#)

(i)

R-E-AE+-_A=+—HAxE
KEEEFERDA AR LER
BE#919,700,000E T (HHER AR
#137,431,0007T) EIEFE K (=
T N\F:FEAHEKFRES
EXHBIEI 9 1 19,700,0003 7T
(HHE N AR¥135,205,0007T) )
EKREBRAFEERAG ([BW
B 5]) 8 AR #17,000,0007T £
BEHEFR(ZE—NF AR
35,000,0007%) ©

REEEBEM19,700,000% T
EERESIRE N F4.45% (ZF
—N\F FRERLAY ) E - ZE
FERE—NFERIBER-Z
“FEENA-tRHEE-

KB & B ey A R 17,000,000
TTERHEFIRF R X4.35% (=
T—N\F:FFNEL35%F4.48% )
HEUWEAR-_E-_ZTFENA=-+~
HEE-
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(i

(i)

The bank loans as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018 were guaranteed by
China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (“China
Wanxiang”), the ultimate controlling company
of the Group. The bank loans borne an
interest rate of 4.9% per annum (2018:
4.9% per annum) and were repayable semi-
annually till 28 February 2022.

The bank loans are subject to the fulfilment
of financial covenants relating to certain
financial ratios of Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine
Thermal Power Co., Ltd., which are
commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. As at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018, none of these
covenants were breached.

Non-current unsecured loans from a related
party of RMB10,000,000 as at 31 December
2019 represented a loan from Puxing Energy.
The loan borne an interest rate of 4.75% per
annum and was repayable on 25 June 2022.

Non-current unsecured loans from a related
party of RMB90,000,000 as at 31 December
2018 represented loans from Puxing Energy,
of which RMB20,000,000 was early repaid
in 2019 and the remaining RMB70,000,000
was repayable on 22 September 2020. The
loans borne an interest rate of 3.92% per
annum (2018: 3.92% per annum).

18
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STEEE (#)

(i

(i)
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R-ZE-NFE+_A=+—HBHEK=
TE-NFE+-_A=+—HWERFTE
HKEFPRERIZERERAR ([FE
gm) (REENREKEZERAF)
BER - ZSERTETIZREFNEL9%
ZE-N\FFHNEL9% ) FHEI
BRI FEEEE T _-___A8
—+NBAEL-

ZERTERAFERELZE (L
HIMBBRBEERARETHH L
REBMYERFE T TR i
EEANESREEIIUNEER
RN —_TE—AF+_A=+—H
FZE-NE+_A=1+H %%
REMEEINER -

R-ZZE—-—AE+-_A=+—HHA
R #10,000,0007T 3F B HA 42 4K 15 B8
BHERARELERENER
ZE RIRFE RN RA75% BB
T _FXAZt+THBEE-

R-_E—NE+-_A=+—BHW
A R #90,000,0007T 3F B HA 42 4 #
HMEHFERBRELEERENE
o HA A R#20,000,0007T B %
—E-NFRAEEZE MHBHETAR
¥70,000,000CZER — S T F
NAZ+-_HEE - ZEERRF
FE3.92% (T — N\F: FF =R
3.92% )t B -

HES




e B R AR MY AT

' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 FTERBE (&)
(Continued)
(v) The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings vy ANEBFEEENERROT:

were repayable as follows:

2019
—F-0EF

RMB’000
ARE TR

Within 1 year —F R 303,431

Over 1 year but less than 2 years B —FEMRER 27,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years HBBEMEERERN 23,500

50,500

353,931

2018
—F-N\F

RMB’000
ARBTT

257,705

169,000
40,500

209,500

467,205
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19 BENESZKEMIA

e B AR MY RE

2019
—%-n%
RMB’000
ARMF T

Trade payables

FE & 5 RIA

Other payables and accrued expenses £ fth JiE ~f ZX 18 [ BT 5 2

1,468
51,511

52,979

As at 31 December 2019, the aging analysis of
trade payables of the Group based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

2018
—E-NEF
RMB’000
ARBTT

3,913
48,854

52,767

RIZB-NF+_A=1+—H rEEE
NE SRARER A A ENRE DT

M

2019
—F-hEF
RMB’000
ARB TR

Within 3 months

—EARN

Over 3 months but less than 6 months @ =1{@ AB /<@ A A

Over 6 months but less than 1 year

BN EAE-FA

839
1562
477

1,468

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —E-NFEERE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

3,480
36
397

3,913

HEA
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20 LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s lease
liabilities at the end of the current and previous
reporting periods and at the date of transition to

IFRS 16:

Within 1 year —-FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FHRERERN

After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER

Less: total future interest expenses B RRFBFRET BB
Present value of lease liabilities HEAERE

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. Further details on the impact of the transition to IFRS
16 are set out in note 2(g).

188 PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED

20

Present
value of the
minimum
lease
payments
RiKHEE
fIRBAE

HE&E

TREINAREHRBEREHREK
BEEBRM B HREEFI65E B
AEBERERENFSRE HBHMR

At 31 December 2019 At 1 January 2019 (Note)
RZ¥-hAE+-A=+-H RZZ—-NF—A—B (ki)
Present

Total value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease

payments payments payments

RiKHEE HERE REHEE

e RRE REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RMB’000
ARETR

486

343

ARETFRT ARBTT ARETT

498 148 150
361 142 150
- 135 150
361 277 300
425 450

(29)

425

Miz: AEEER -2 NF—A - ARALETH
EBWEERERBERY B REENF165R LR
BEVIEE  NERLARIBERE E*P’?ﬂ'l%ﬂ
KORRLEHENHENEERE - BEER
BB MEEBEIRATE 2 E—THBH
SR P E2(e) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

DEFERRED REVENUE 21

e IR R R

2019 2018

=t BV — T \F
RMB’000 ERIY/=K0loo
ARBTE NS

Government grants R AT AL

11,735 12,099

The government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessarily to match them with
the related costs of assets constructed which they
are intended to compensate over the periods and
in the proportion in which depreciation on those
assets is charged.

BT 8 B S B 7R B P 2 EE W AR BE AR
(BNRE 78 H3 ) it 8 18 RO AR ) AR IE L A9
HE AR REA - R PIEEZE
BEMBESINENLHI—-

MHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOL DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gl e

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 HREMBRRRANAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) SZEMBRRRFTPBIBEPEIBIE :
statement of financial position
represents:
2019 2018
“E-AF EERiS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx PN S
Balance at 1 January R—A—B®&Ee 3,186 (681)
Provision for PRC Corporate FRPREPEMGHBEE
Income Tax for the year 21,337 17,730
Transferred from deferred tax DR B B R IE
upon distribution of dividends 3,500 -
Corporate Income Tax paid B EERER (21,823) (13,863)
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—BH&EH 6,200 3,186
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EHEINEEHESERARE
recognised:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are NTEEEENEEHIEEERE
attributable to the following: f&:
Assets Liabilities
BE Bf&
2019 2018 2019 2018
—g-ns QLI -g-u5 LY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFR AREFT
Property, plant and equipment mE BEREE 282 =
Government grants BT E 2,935 , =
Withholding tax on profits retained AEERENBEARR
by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries R & EM (33,209) (29,651)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilties) EEFEEE/ (BE) ] 2 (33,209) (29,651)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRERMEE

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 &R
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Movement in deferred tax balance
during the year

(c) FREEBIFEMRES

BMBIRRNRANER (&)

Withholding
tax on profits
retained
by the
Property, Group’s
plantand  Government PRC
equipment grants  subsidiaries Total
X£E
HEHREAS
Y& -BHER REBiEFE
B B RG Hn# @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTE ARETE ARETE ARET:
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—-A—H 1,677 3,003 (23,572 (18,892)
Recognised in consolidated PG ERRER
statement of profit or loss (950) 23 (6,079 (7,0006)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\&
and 1 January 2019 +-A=+-8A%k
—E-NE—-A—H 727 3,026 (29,651) (25,898)
Recognised in consolidated REEEERRER
statement of profit or loss (445) 91) (7,058) (7,594)
Transferred from deferred tax liabilities 7 & ik 8.8 & B E T 1B
upon distribution of dividends BE - - 3,500 3,500
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N&F
+ZA=+- 282 2,935 (33,209) (29,992)

g
N

e 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —Z—NWEFFERE
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22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 FEMBARRKRRNNMER (&

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) REZWELEHRIESE
Deferred tax assets have not been MABUATIEERRELERIEE
recognised in respect of the following items, E RERTKAEERKER
because it is not probable that future taxable HAAHAEBERERESAEFE-

S

profit will be available against which the
Group can use the benefits therefrom.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
—E-A&E+-R=+-H - )\E+ZA=1+—H
Gross Tax Gross Tax
Amount effect amount effect
ek hBxe k] RBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT NS SRSt aw

Deductible temporary differences AMRERER 94,659 23,665 108,546 27,136
Tax losses REBRE 1,938 484 2,329 582

96,597 24,149 110,875 27,718
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations BEFEABEERR LA RE
in the PRC, the unrecognised tax losses at ¥ 5 HA R B R BE SR S S 1B I A A
the end of the reporting period will expire in TF | H -

the following years:

2019 2018
—2-nx BN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ICLTE N ARETT

2019 —E-NF 399
2020 —ETF 976
2021 —E-—F 786
2022 - 168
2023 —E-= -
2024 —Z-uF =

2,329




23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity

-

The reconciliation between the opening and

23

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

BER-EERRE

(a) ERZBHZEEH
AEEGAEDES MO FNRER

closing balances of each component of the EHcHEREN A EREEHER -
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the RAREREEH D FVHRFERZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. BEFBOT:
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
The Company xag
Share Share  Contributed Capital ~ Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
kA RHEE BARR  AARE EXEE  2iER BER
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARETR ARETT ARETR AR%ETn ARETR ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-F-\E-F-BH4EH 40,149 91,230 358,044 26,065 (5,808) (206,046) 303,639
Changes in equity for 2018: —F-\FEREH:
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (15,200) (15,200)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - 2,988 - 2,988
Total comprehensive income FREERALE
for the year - - - - 2,988 (15,200) (12,212)
Dividends approved in respect of B EMEFRS
previous year 23(d)(ii) - (11,493) - - - - (11,493)
Balance at 31 December 2018 ~ R=F-\f+-F=+-H
ok 40,149 79737 358,044 26,065 (2.815) (221,246 279,934

Balance at 1 January 2019

Changes in equity for 2019:
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

RZZ-hE—A-BHEH

SE-AERBEE:
ERER
TN

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividends approved in respect of
previous year

FRARARAER

BHENEFRS

Balance at 31 December 2019

R=¥-AE+=A=1+-H
&

Share
capital

23

40,149

Share
premium
idup i
RMB’000

ARETR

79,737

(14,097)

65,640

Contributed
surplus

BARG
RMB'000
AREFR

358,044

358,044

Translation Accumulated
reserve losses
EXfiE RibE
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETR

Capital
reserve
AX G
RMB'000
ARETT

26,065 2815 (221,246)

13,881

26,065 (2629)  (207,365)
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital

23 EXR-RHEERRE (4

(b) Bx&
2019 2018
—T-NE —Z-N\F
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
K& E &8 R &R &8
Note HK$’000 HK$'000

M ThR TAT

Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SR EE0.108 Tz LER

1,000,000,000 OO0 1,000,000,000 100,000

No. of
shares
Ordinary shares,
issued and fully paid RikE
b T Note
ERTRERE i
At 1 January ®—A—A 458,600,000
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 458,600,000

(c) Reserves
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

(ii) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity
component of convertible bonds issued
by the Company in the previous years.

194 PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED j‘éf__l

2019 2018
—E-nE —2-N\F
Amount No. of Amount
Amount equivalent to shares Amount  equivalent to

&8  aEEER Bir#E 28 2BMASR
HK$'000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB'000
TEL  ARBTRL TAL  ARETR

45,860 CURERES 458,600,000 45,860 40,149

45,860 CURERES 458,600,000 45,860 40,149

(c) fitf&
(i) BRH@E
R GSERNERATHEHRS
RNAVEHRE -

(i) BEXEHE
BARBEEARNDNBEFEE
1T 7 Al B E AR R ITIE R
B EDEN T




23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the excess
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group
pursuant to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the
consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of
Puxing Neng, Puxing Xing and Puxing
Tian determined on the basis of the
consolidated net assets of Puxing
Neng, Puxing Xing and Puxing Tian at
the date of the Reorganisation over the
nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserve

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of those
companies comprising the Group
which are established in the PRC until
the reserve balance reached 50% of
their registered capital. Appropriations
to the reserves were approved by the
respective board of directors.
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23 EXR-#EEERE (&)

(c) fitfE (&)
(i) & HEE

AU HEEEAEEETHER
AIRBAEBRNR ST HE
NAmETmEKRzER([E
B EHRALEBE A
NAFIRE (BIARRARIEA
T TIRMOEE) 2
B o

(iv) %A EE
BABRBRERBEEY T2
FREERGEEEFEET
MNEEGR TEHERLREERRK
MREHB BN R ERBER
RAWERR BTN ME
BZH-

(v) ZEBRRHE
EEBSREEERETEAH
HE ROEIRIA KA BIAKIZEY
AEEE NS R ANABER
AMAERY  EEEEESRES
B F 5l B ARE50% 7 LE © f&#
BRICEEESTSHE-

HSS
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX-RBRRE (&
(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) fitfE (&)
(v) Statutory surplus reserve (v) ZERBEFE (&)

(Continued)
For the entity concerned, statutory EBRAMECRGBREY
surplus reserves can be used to make RAREEUTFENERE (1
good previous years’ losses, if any, B) AR EERBRE
and may be converted into capital LEplsEmpKE AR HERE
in proportion to the existing equity MERTEIREME RN
interests of investors, provided that the 25% o

balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

(d) Dividends (d B2
(i) Dividends payable to equity () FREMXLAGTEBRER
shareholders of the Company £

attributable to the year

2019 2018
=t LP R —T— \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT PN S
Final dividend proposed after WEAHEBEIKRERNRE
the reporting date of HK$0.04 & 8 & %0.04/5 T
(2018: HK$0.035) per share —E-NF:
0.035%7T) 13,768
The final dividend proposed after the AR5 B R 18 $0R 2 A9 R BB AR
end of the reporting period has not BWERREHAERREA
been recognised as a liability at the end i

of the reporting period.




23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EXR -RHERRE (&)

(Continued)

(d) Dividends (Continued)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous

" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R

(d KB (#Z

financial year, approved and paid

during the year

(i) BREAMYELSETEIETE

AEEBREL—HMBEE

®E

2019
—g-n%
RMB’000
AR%F T

Final dividend in respect of
the previous financial year,
approved and paid during
the year of HK$0.035
(2018: HK$0.03) per share

FF R HE T S A Y
F—HBREERS
% 2 & /%0.035% 7T
A
0.03% 1)

1 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —E-NFEERE
e g~ Ty e g

A

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBTT

11,493

MHSA
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

S8

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of a net debt-to-total capital
ratio. For this purpose, net debt is defined
as total debt (which includes all interest-
bearing borrowings, shareholder’s loan and
lease liabilities, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt.

In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to equity shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders or sell
assets to reduce debt.

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %‘f_’\
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(e)

EX-EERRE (#£)

BEXER
AEEEREANEEBNHERR
BAEENAFELERLT  NEE
SHE AR S R SR O o Ko A B M
MEFDRNG TRIFEKENER
RERE RIEEARRAE-

Kﬁlfﬁiﬁﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R HEORBRESEENEN
BEBCREHRERREANKRNE

BN ARBERR 7 M IR B AR B
SRBEERERE-
AEBEFMBFEEEERNL RKER

HEARRB-BULME FREER
%Eﬁ@%(@ﬁé%%#ﬁ%%

BEMABEE BRRERK
ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
B BENERE BB R AP
AR R R SRR EGEDINE
BT HE -

RERFIFEL X - AEEAEB
AR T AR AALE
) i BRAR
%o

CBITHR
BEANHEEERLE



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23

(Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continueq)

The Group’s net debt-to-total capital ratio at
the end of the current and previous reporting
periods and at the date of transition to IFRS

16 was as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR MY RE

EX-EERRE (#£)

() BFER (&)
AEERARERLBERE

RN 7 B R B S R

%8216

[ e A

HERAZFRELERN LR

31 December
2019

Z8-rE

RMB’000
ARBTR

303,431
486

303,917

135,075
50,500
343

489,835
(48,893)

Note
i3
Current liabilities: mBaE:
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 18
Lease liabilities HEBE 20
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE:
Shareholder’s loan BRERER 17
Interest-bearing borrowings AEREE 18
Lease liabilities HEAR 20
Total debt EBEE
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A RERREEEN 16
Net debt FAR

440,942

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

ARARERE S

576,132

Total capital

BEX

1,017,074

Net debt-to-total capital ratio

FARGASLE

43.35%

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Under
this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See note 2(e).

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

LA
Moy L

o

1 January 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NF “E-0\fF
—A-RB tZA=t-H
(Note) (Note)
(BfzE) (HzE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT N
257,705 257,705
148 =
257,853 257,705
126,227 126,227
209,500 209,500
277 -
593,857 593,432
(74,860) (74,860)
518,997 518,572
542,487 542,487
1,061,484 1,061,059
48.89% 48.87%

M AEEER-_ZE-NAF-A—BHEAEL
EAREMEERERBERMBERERE
BIE1657 I B B AN A 6 - IARERR SR AT AR
BER G EREITROBEAKERS
MEEMNEAERE -REUITE LBRE
B FEY - RHFE2()

—ENFEERE

HSS
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

° credit risk
° liquidity risk
° market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from
customers.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group
does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group
are mainly held with well-known financial
institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these
deposits and does not expect that these
financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 10 to 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than the credit term given by the Group are
generally requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

202

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 95.16% (2018: 92.59%)
and 99.87% (2018: 99.15%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer (including its subsidiaries)
and five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. No ECLs were provided
as at 31 December 2019 as the Group’s
customers are limited and had no historical
credit loss experience, and all the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 were
fully settled up to the date of the issuance
of these financial statements. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in
note 15.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following are the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities at the
reporting date.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

204

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts are gross and undiscounted,
and include estimated interest payments and
exclude the impact of netting agreements:
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At 31 December 2019
R=¥-1E+=A=t+-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

SRR ERRZ AR

More than More than More than More than

Within 3 months 6 months 9 months 1 year
3monthsor  but less than  but less than  but less than  but less than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5years Total amount

=Rk =Rk AEAR 7ERK Bii-%
SRERE BORAER EBORAER  BYR-F  EOREE L) R
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREIT  ARETR
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE (i 42,241 1,957 269,528 620 52,520 366,872 353,931
Trade and other payables ERESREMTE 25,610 - 26,572 797 - 52,979 52,079
Shareholder's loan RE&3 - - - - 153,140 153,140 135,075
Lease liabites (note) EEETERY 121 166 143 68 361 859 829
67,978 PAVX] 206,243 1,485 206,021 573,850 542,814

At 31 December 2018
RZB-NE+ZA=+-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANERENRLALER

More than More than More than More than

Within 3 months 6 months 9 months 1 year
3monthsor  butlessthan  butlessthan  butlessthan  butless than Carmying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years Total amount

=@AR =fiAR ~EAR NEAR BE-f
FRERE BIRAER BHRAER  BOR-F  BIREF 3t BHfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTn  ARBTR  ARETR AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Interest-bearing borrowings HERE 64,010 13,076 182,384 22,440 208,804 490,714 467,205
Trade and other payables EREHREMTE 30,024 - 19,889 2,854 - 52,767 52,767
Shareholder's loan RE&E5 - - - - 149,792 149,792 126,27
94,034 13,076 202,273 26,294 368,596 693,273 646,199
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the

(i

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Lease
liabilities include amounts recognised at the date of
transition to IFRS 16 in respect of leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17 and
amounts relating to new leases entered into during
the year. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(e).

In respect of interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2019,
the principals and related interest
expenses of RMB42.2 million due within
3 months or on demand had been
repaid in the first quarter of 2020.

On 22 January 2020, the Group
entered into a financial service
agreement with Wanxiang Finance, a
related party of the Company, pursuant
to which Wanxiang Finance has agreed
to provide certain financial services,
including credit facilities of up to
RMB300,000,000, to the Group and
has a term ending 31 December 2022.
See note 28 for details.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

206

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group’s major businesses are
conducted by the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC. As the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries’ functional currency
is RMB and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB, the
Group considers the currency risk to be
insignificant.

The Company and the Hong Kong
subsidiaries’ functional currency is
Hong Kong dollar and their borrowings
are principally conducted in Hong
Kong dollar or United States Dollar.
As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the United States dollar, the Group
considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States
Dollar to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings
and shareholder’s loan. The Group
manages its interest rate exposure by
maintaining a prudent mix of fixed and
variable rate borrowings.

The Group is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk for cash and cash
equivalents because the interest rates
of cash at bank are not expected to
change significantly.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(c) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period,
the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments

was as follows:
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RMB’000
ARETR

137,431
135,075
829

273,335

119,500

2019
“E-0E
Effective
interest rate
ERAE
%
Fixed rate borrowings: TEEE:
Loans from related parties BEFER 4.45%
Shareholder's loan REE R 4.9%
Lease liabilities (note 20) HESEE (MFE20) 4.75%
Variable rate borrowings: FREE:
Bank loans RAER 4.9%
Loans from related parties BEAER 3.92% - 4.75%

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach and
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See note 2(g).

97,000

216,500

489,835

2018

—ZE-\&

Effective
interest rate

RS

%

RMB'000
ARETT

4.45%
4.9%

135,206
126,227

4.9%
3.92% - 4.48%

261,432

197,000
135,000

332,000

593,432
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(c)

208

Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for
variable rate borrowings

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
by approximately RMB1,624,000 (2018:
RMB2,490,000).

The sensitivity analysis above
indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. The impact
on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2018.
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COMMITMENTS 25

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at
31 December 2019 not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements
were as follows:
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BREAMBRRBEDRME S
BEERERE FBEOT:

Authorised but not contracted for BB HEBRETL

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-

2019
—%-n%
RMB’000

AREFR

14,669

2018
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARETR

11,681

(b) R=T—N\EFE+=-A=+—H'#R
BATRMEECEHERMHEREK

cancellable operating leases were REHEEFREFENT:
payable as follows:
Properties
S
RMB’000
ARBETT
Within 1 year —F R 484
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHERFR 225
709
209

ST A RS
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25 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future

= 1113)

minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases were
payable as follows: (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a
number of properties held under leases
which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. The Group
has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see
note 2(e)). From 1 January 2019 onwards,
future lease payments are recognised as
lease liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(k), and the details
regarding the Group’s future lease payments
are disclosed in note 20.
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019,
transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions. The
following is a summary of the principal related
party transactions carried out by the Group with
the below related parties for the year.

Name of party

BE Y &
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BE-_ZET-NE+-_A=1+—HBIFE-
BTRIANTZRGBREBEARS AT
BAEEHETI@BESIRNFANTER
EARGME-

Relationship

B 1%

Puxing International

EEEK

Puxing Energy

Dl =] N
LTE2EFREE

China Wanxiang
hEEM

Wanxiang Finance

B %

Immediate holding company

BERERAQR

Intermediate parent company
BEZ3SYNC]

Ultimate controlling company
R A A

A company controlled by Wanxiang Group
Corporation, of which the chairman of
Wanxiang Group Corporation is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company
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(Continued)

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 BARRS (£)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EAREHETHNEXBAESRXS
and balances with related parties R
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these BRZEVBERREAMIBOFIEES
financial statements, the Group entered N REBEIZATERBELSR
into the following material related party VK
transactions:
2019 2018
=t Db T — \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT PN S
Loans from FREHER
Wanxiang Finance &\t 57,000
Loans repaid to BEREFER
Puxing Energy T 2R 15,000
Wanxiang Finance B maB 72,000
Interest income FIE WA
Wanxiang Finance B M5 272
Interest expenses FIBRMX
Puxing International T2 B 5,681
Puxing Energy T 2R 10,341
Wanxiang Finance B % 2,309

==
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

Significant related party transactions
and balances with related parties

(Continued)

The balances arising from the significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties as at 31 December

2019 are as follows:
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(a) EEAEFETHEXFAERIXS

R&es (&)

RZFB-NAF+-_A=+—HB &K
SEHEFRBETNEARHMAE

EREERINT

2019
—EB-hE
RMB’000
AREFx

17 (135,075)

18 (217,431)
(26,572)

Note
Bt 5

Puxing International T2

- Shareholder’s loan —REER

- Dividend payable —ERRE

Puxing Energy T 2R

— Interest-bearing borrowings —it B EE

— Interest payable — A B

Wanxiang Finance BE A5

- Unsecured interest-bearing —EEFA BEE

borrowings
- Interest payable —ERFE
- Demand deposits —EHEXK

18 (17,000)
(7)
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(35,000)
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 BEERREG (&
(Continued)
(b) Key management personnel (b) EEZEBAEMNE
remuneration
Remuneration for key management AEBTEEBRAENE (B2EME
personnel of the Group, including amounts MIEE8MFTH B A A RIES KM
paid to the Company’s directors as INFIEENE TR FHEESN
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest WERE) T :
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:
2019 2018
i 2P Rl — T\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT PN S
Short-term employee benefits MEEERT 3,219 3,185
Post-employment benefits BB R 178 142
3,397 3,327
Total remuneration is included in “personnel @& ATEIAA] (RHF
costs” (see note 5(b)). 5(b)) °
(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules (c) FHREXSMEHRAZER
relating to connected transactions BE
The related party transactions in respect T ERATERBRREE RN

214

of Puxing International and Puxing Energy
above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However those
transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are financial assistance
received by the Group from a connected
person or commonly held entity which
could be exempted of disclosure under Rule
14A.90.
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27

FINANCIAL POSITION
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2019

—F-0EF
Note RMB’000
U ARWTT

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment

ERHEE
S NENGILEE:
M- BB R&E

(i 576,969
54

577,023

83
2,511

Current assets REBEE

Other receivables H b fE W KIE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBREEFEEY
Current liabilities REBBE
Interest-bearing borrowings TEBE

Trade and other payables

FET & 5 M H A IR

2,594

137,431
27,207

164,638

Net current liabilities RENEEFEHE (162,044)
Total assets less current liabilities BEER R E & 414,979
Non-current liabilities FREERE

Shareholder’s loan f& R E &K 17 135,075
NET ASSETS AEFE 279,904
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGHE 23(a)

Share capital f& A 23(b) 40,149
Reserves =] 239,755
TOTAL EQUITY EERS 279,904
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2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOL DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27 NRIEEMBMBERRE (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(i) Interests in subsidiaries (i) MHRBATEZR
2019 2018
—T-hE Pt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS0
Investments in subsidiaries R B R RMEE 223,381 223,381
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE 353,588 346,637
576,969 570,018
Amounts due from subsidiaries are EWWEB AR RBENERR &8
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed MEETERL -
term of repayment.
NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 28 REHRBRIFFAEEIE

REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 January 2020, the Group entered into
a financial service agreement with Wanxiang
Finance, a related party of the Company, pursuant
to which Wanxiang Finance has agreed to provide
certain financial services, including deposit
services with maximum daily balance (including
interests) of not exceeding RMB170,000,000 and
credit facilities of up to RMB300,000,000 to the
Group (“Financial Services Agreement”) during the
term of the Financial Services Agreement. The
Financial Services Agreement became effective
after the approval of the deposit services under
the Financial Services Agreement and the Caps at
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 12 March
2020 and has a term ending 31 December 2022.

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a

final dividend on 30 March 2020. Further details
are disclosed in note 23(d).

PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED & 22

R_E-_EF—A=-+-H AEEH
RRBIEERBRMBE LS 8RS H
OB BRYBRERSRRE RS
ZFHARAEBEREETERE 2
REBHEaGTRES (BEMNBE) THBA
AER#170,000,000 N FRRE LTS
A R 300,000,000t ZERE ([£
BRI ] ) - S BRI EE S MR
BHEE T Z2ERRER ERR ==
TFEZA+-_BARTHREREIAE L
BEEES FHE T -_—"F+—H
=+—Hlit-

R|EHBE EFE— PR T _TF
ZAZtHEZRNKRBKRE @ #E—
15 3% B R MY 5E23(d) °
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COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 using the modified retrospective
method. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 2(e).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mr.
Lu Weiding, an individual person.

As at 31 December 2019, the directors consider
the immediate and ultimate controlling company
of the Group to be Puxing International and China
Wanxiang respectively, which are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and the PRC respectively.
These entities do not produce financial statements
available for public use.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, IFRS 17,
Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

31
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 E-_E-AF+-A=+—HL
ifhaﬁﬁﬁﬁ{ﬂrﬁfﬁi;&ﬁﬁﬂ R
AEAIRZRENTREEE

BEZSVBRATIZHBE BEREE
AEEgCRHBE—_FT-NAF+-A
ST -HLEFERAREMAERREZEN
ﬁ%#&i‘%ﬂﬂ‘j*%ﬁﬁz//wfﬁf R R —IEH
IR (BIFR B 5 3RS ERIFATH [ R
BA) W FERAEEAKETIE
THAARE °

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUTHHSZE
s B B e R A

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

FE A BB 75 R & R B E AR ey 15 AT

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

BYER A 75 28 & PE R E 9 - Bl & 5t 2B R F 3955 K B BX 31 7% 28 &5 B A

BTHNEETA - FIERELNE

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a Business

BB R T 3R & SE R B3I AT K R E &

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of Material

1 January 2020
—E-_TF—-H—H

1 January 2020
—E-TF—-H—H
1 January 2020
—E-FTF—-H—H

1 January 2020

Bl & a1 R E 19 R EISR & 5t BRI FE8TEE 5T K - BEA M E % —EF-TF—H—H

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

BB R T 3 & SR E 17 RIR & A

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of
assets between an Investor and its associate or /'oinz‘ venture

BB B 755 38 5 2B R 1095 R BB & a1 2E Rl 285 15

EPRZ B E %I/fﬁ

REZHABZNAXE

1 January 2021
—F-—%—HA—H

To be determined

fF3E
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31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 31 BEZE—-hF+ZA=+—HL

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ¢r‘ 2 ME M8 e R A SRV IS ET - ¥
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR RIEARBRENARESE (£)
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Continueq)
The Group is in the process of making an AEEFTHZEERNEXRERBAM
assessment of what the impact of these FEHEROTE -t NEERRBEN
developments is expected to be in the period of ZEBRRIQEUSEMBHRFRENEKX
initial application. So far it has concluded that the HEo

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AR

RESULTS e

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

L SN —T-N\E 2+ —T-—XE —T-nf
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
IN-L el ARETT ARETE ARETRE ARETR

Revenue g 292,209 281,625 348,364 279,173 389,631
Profit before taxation BR % A1l i A1 83,782 70,316 59,999 70,761 61,820
Income tax i (28,931) (24,736) (25,831) (29,310) (18,441)
Profit for the year FEREF 54,851 45,580 34,168 41,451 43,379
Attributable to: Y TAL R :
Equity shareholders of ROAERRR

the Company 45,580 34,222 41,703 43,691
Non-controlling interests R - (54) (252) (312)
Profit for the year FREH 45,580 34,168 41,451 43,379
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

L BN —T-\& —T—t+&E T E —E-HEFE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IN:L-ES M ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:R

ASSETS BE
Current assets RYEE 107,716 122,484 125,763 196,473 219,762
Non-current assets ERBEE SOLPRDEY 1,111,672 1,158,106 1,217,150 1,243,463
Total assets BEE CROGPAN 1234,156 1,283,869 1,413,623 1,463,225
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities MEAE 363,096 313,658 299,629 597,494 323,657
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 230,862 377,477 462,367 331,628 669,805
Total liabilities BafE 593,958 691,135 761,996 929,122 993,462
Net assets BEFE 576,663 543,021 521,873 484,501 469,763
EQUITY i
Equity shareholders of ARAIERERR

the Company 576,132 542,487 521,339 483,913 468,923
Non-controlling interests R ER 531 534 534 588 840
Total equity BiEs 576,663 543,021 521,873 484,501 469,763

=22() PUXING CLEAN ENERGY LIMITED %E)‘%‘E‘E;ﬁﬁﬁ’l\\ﬂ :
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